
Pwyllgor Craffu ar Waith y Prif Weinidog 
 

Lleoliad: 

Ystafell Bwyllgora 1 - y Senedd 

 

 

 

Dyddiad: 

Dydd Iau, 26 Mehefin 2014  

 

Amser: 

14.00 

 

I gael rhagor o wybodaeth, cysylltwch â:  

Steve George 

Clerc y Pwyllgor 

029 2089 8242 

craffuPW@cymru.gov.uk  

  

 

Agenda 

 

 

Rhag-gyfarfod (13:45 - 14:00) 

1 Cyflwyniad, ymddiheuriadau a dirprwyon   

2 Craffu ar Waith y Gweinidog - Strategaeth 2010 Llywodraeth Cymru ar 

y Newid yn yr Hinsawdd. (14:00 - 15:45) (Tudalennau 1 - 14)  

  

CSFM(4)-01-14 Papur 1- Tystiolaeth ysgrifenedig 

  

         Carwyn Jones AM, Prif Weinidog 

         Rhodri Asby – Dirprwy Cyfarwyddwr Gwrthsefyll & Gweithredu Hinsawdd 

         Lucy Corfield - Pennaeth Gwrthsefyll & Gweithredu Hinsawdd 

Themâu Craffu: 

------------------------Pecyn dogfennau cyhoeddus ------------------------



1.           Strategaeth Cymru ar y Newid yn yr Hinsawdd - cynnydd hyd yma 

2.           A yw Llywodraeth Cymru yn gwneud digon i fynd i'r afael â'r newid yn yr 

hinsawdd? 

3.           Y sector preswyl 

4.           Newid ymddygiad ac addysg 

5.           Busnes/ynni adnewyddadwy 

3 Papurau i'w nodi (15:45 - 15:50) (Tudalennau 15 - 68)  

  

CSFM(4)01-14 (ptn1) Perthynas gyda’r Trydydd Sector a’r Sector Preifat. - Ymateb 

Llywodraeth Cymru 

CSFM(4)01-14 (ptn1-atodiad) Wales Social Partners Unit Evaluation (Saesneg yn Unig) 

Gohebiaeth-Cadeirydd i'r Prif Weinidog (Mawrth 2014) 

4 Cynnig o dan Reol Sefydlog 17.42 i benderfynu gwahardd y cyhoedd 

o'r cyfarfod ar gyfer y canlynol:    

Eitem 5 

5 Trafod y dystiolaeth o'r sesiwn blaenorol (15:50 - 16:00)  



1 
 

TYSTIOLAETH YSGRIFENEDIG I’R PWYLLGOR AR GYFER CRAFFU ARNI 

GAN Y PRIF WEINIDOG: Strategaeth Newid yn yr Hinsawdd Llywodraeth 

Cymru 

 

 

Y Cyd-destun Newid yn yr Hinsawdd  

 

Mae adroddiadau diweddar gan y Panel Rhynglywodraethol ar y Newid 

yn yr Hinsawdd wedi tynnu sylw at y consensws gwyddonol aruthrol o 

ran y newid yn yr hinsawdd a achosir gan bobl a’r effaith y mae’n ei 

chael eisoes. Trwy wneud hynny, maent wedi pwysleisio a chryfhau’r 

achos busnes dros weithredu, gan dynnu sylw at y costau cynyddol - 

yn economaidd, yn gymdeithasol ac yn amgylcheddol - y byddwn yn 

eu hwynebu os na fyddwn yn gweithredu. 

 

Fel y dangosodd y gaeaf diwethaf unwaith eto, mae tywydd difrifol yn 

cael effaith sylweddol eisoes ar economi a chymunedau Cymru. Felly, 

nid dim ond problem fyd-eang yw newid yn yr hinsawdd, neu broblem 

a fydd yn effeithio ar genedlaethau’r dyfodol; mae iddi oblygiadau real 

iawn yma yng Nghymru nawr, i ni i gyd, ac i’r mwyaf agored i niwed yn 

sicr. Felly, mae gweithredu ynghylch newid yn yr hinsawdd yn 

hanfodol, nid yn unig er mwyn osgoi lefelau peryglus o newid yn yr 

hinsawdd yn y dyfodol, ond hefyd i addasu’r newid yn yr hinsawdd yr 

ydym wedi’n cloi ynddo eisoes. Yn yr un modd, mae’n hanfodol i’n 

ffyniant ni yn y dyfodol ac yn cynnig cyfleoedd arwyddocaol.     

 

Fel llywodraeth, rydym yn derbyn canfyddiadau adroddiadau’r Panel 

Rhynglywodraethol ar y Newid yn yr Hinsawdd yn llawn ac yn credu y 

dylai ffocws y drafodaeth fod ar y dull gorau o sbarduno cyflawni. Yn 

fwy na hynny, bydd ein ffocws yr un mor gadarn ar y cyfleoedd twf 

gwyrdd sylweddol sy’n gysylltiedig â datgarboneiddio byd-eang a’r 

newid i garbon isel.                                 

 

Strategaeth Newid yn yr Hinsawdd Llywodraeth Cymru  

 

Mae ein camau gweithredu fel Llywodraeth yn perthyn i fframwaith 

ehangach y Cenhedloedd Unedig, yr Undeb Ewropeaidd a’r DU. 

Tudalen y pecyn 1

Eitem 2



2 
 

Gwelwyd Protocol Kyoto Confensiwn Fframwaith y Cenhedloedd 

Unedig ar y Newid yn yr Hinsawdd yn gosod rhwymedigaeth ar 

wledydd diwydiannol i ymrwymo i leihau allyriadau nwyon tŷ gwydr 

drwy bennu targedau. O ganlyniad, ymrwymodd yr UE i leihau 

allyriadau nwyon tŷ gwydr cyffredinol i fod 20 y cant yn is na lefelau 

1990 erbyn 2020, ac 80% yn is erbyn 2050. Mae’n anelu hefyd at 

gadarnhau’r ymrwymiad ymhellach drwy gytuno ar darged interim 

ychwanegol o 40% erbyn 2030 a thrwy hynny bennu llwybr clir at 

ddatgarboneiddio. 

 

Yn y DU, pennir rhagor o ymrwymiadau deddfwriaethol yn Neddf 

Newid yn yr Hinsawdd 2008, sy’n cynnwys ymrwymiad i sicrhau bod 

cofnod carbon net y DU ar gyfer y flwyddyn 2050 80% o leiaf yn is na 

llinell sylfaen 1990. Yn y fframwaith hwn, mae ein hymrwymiadau 

cyffredinol i weithredu dros y Newid yn yr Hinsawdd wedi’u datgan yn 

y Rhaglen Lywodraethu. Mae’n datgan ein prif ymrwymiadau i economi 

carbon isel, gan weithredu’r strategaeth ar y newid yn yr hinsawdd i 

leihau nwyon tŷ gwydr a sbarduno addasu effeithiol i newid yn yr 

hinsawdd. Mae dau brif darged ar gyfer allyriadau’n rhan o’n 

hymrwymiadau cyffredinol ac maent yn llywio ein camau gweithredu - 

gostyngiad blynyddol o 3% mewn allyriadau mewn ardaloedd 

datganoledig a gostyngiad o 40% mewn allyriadau cyffredinol erbyn 

2020. Yn ogystal â’r prif ymrwymiadau hyn, ceir hefyd gamau 

gweithredu allweddol eraill ar newid yn yr hinsawdd sydd wedi’u 

plethu’n rhan o’r Rhaglen Lywodraethu ac sy’n berthnasol i’n gwaith ni 

yn cyflwyno polisïau allweddol, a hefyd ein hymrwymiad i arwain a 

chwarae ein rhan ar lefel fyd-eang. Mae’r Strategaeth ar y Newid yn yr 

Hinsawdd yn rhan o’r fframwaith hwn ac yn canolbwyntio ar leihau 

allyriadau ac ar sbarduno pecyn cynhwysfawr o fesurau ymarferol i 

ymateb i ganlyniadau newid yn yr hinsawdd. Yn ogystal â chamau 

gweithredu Llywodraeth Cymru, mae’r Strategaeth hefyd yn tynnu sylw 

at gyfraniad ehangach eraill tuag at ein targedau - mae gweithredu 

gan fusnesau, llywodraeth leol, a’r sector cyhoeddus ehangach, y 

trydydd sector, cymunedau ac unigolion i gyd yn allweddol er mwyn 

cyflawni’n llwyddiannus. 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 2



3 
 

Fel Llywodraeth, rydym yn cydnabod bod newid yn yr hinsawdd yn 

galw am weithredu ar y cyd gan bob portffolio. Felly, mae ein proses 

adrodd yn ôl flynyddol yn cyflwyno’r wybodaeth ddiweddaraf am y 

camau sy’n cael eu rhoi ar waith ym mhob adran er mwyn mynd i’r 

afael ag achosion a chanlyniadau newid yn yr hinsawdd. Mae’r Adran 

Cyfoeth Naturiol a Bwyd yn goruchwylio’r broses hon o adrodd yn ôl (o 

dan Ddeddf Newid yn yr Hinsawdd 2008) a hefyd yn arwain ar y polisi 

newid yn yr hinsawdd ar ran Llywodraeth Cymru. Yn cefnogi’r gwaith o 

gyflwyno’r Strategaeth ar y Newid yn yr Hinsawdd mae fframwaith 

dangosyddion i fesur ein cynnydd, sydd wedi’i gynnwys yn atodiad 

technegol yr Adroddiad Blynyddol. Hefyd, mae Comisiwn Cymru ar y 

Newid yn yr Hinsawdd wedi asesu’r cynnydd y mae Llywodraeth Cymru 

yn ei wneud ac mae Pwyllgor y DU ar y Newid yn yr Hinsawdd wedi 

adrodd yn ôl ar y cynnydd yng Nghymru ddwywaith. Mae’r fframwaith 

adrodd yn ôl hwn yn ategu’r prosesau cysylltiedig ar gyfer y Rhaglen 

Lywodraethu a Datblygu Cynaliadwy. 

 

Y cynnydd hyd yma 

 

Mae ein hadroddiadau wedi tynnu sylw at y cynnydd sylweddol o ran 

cyflawni yn erbyn amcanion ein Strategaeth ar y Newid yn yr Hinsawdd. 

O gofio ehangder y gwaith sy’n cael ei wneud, mae’r enghreifftiau’n 

rhy niferus i’w rhestru, ond maent yn cynnwys y canlynol: 

 

o Cynnydd gyda lleihau allyriadau o wastraff a chynyddu ailgylchu; 

o Llwyddiant cynllun ynni strategol Llywodraeth Cymru, arbed, 

ynghyd â’n cynllun sgrapio boeleri a’r rhaglen effeithlonrwydd ynni 

cartref; 

o Datblygu menter y Canolfannau Teithio Cynaliadwy i greu 

rhwydweithiau trafnidiaeth sydd wedi’u hintegreiddio’n well, gan 

hybu iechyd a lles; 

o Y gefnogaeth a’r cyngor parhaus i fusnesau ar effeithlonrwydd ynni 

a chyfleoedd carbon isel ar gyfer busnesau bach a chanolig, a’r 

gwaith yn arwain y gweithredu ledled y sector cyhoeddus er mwyn 

lleihau allyriadau;  

Tudalen y pecyn 3



4 
 

o Cyhoeddi canllawiau i gyrff cyhoeddus yng Nghymru ar addasu i 

newid yn yr hinsawdd a strategaeth genedlaethol ar reoli llifogydd; 

ac 

o Ein gwaith i integreiddio lliniaru ac addasu i newid yn yr hinsawdd 

yn y rheolaeth effeithiol ar ein cyfoeth naturiol.                 

 

Hefyd, roedd ein hadroddiad diwethaf yn dangos y wybodaeth 

ddiweddaraf o Asesiad Risg y DU o’r Newid yn yr Hinsawdd mewn 

perthynas â phob sector, gan dynnu sylw at y gweithredu sy’n cael ei 

wneud ar addasu sy’n hanfodol i ffyniant a chadernid Cymru yn y 

tymor hir.       

 

O ran cynnydd yn erbyn ein prif dargedau, ein hadroddiad yn 2013 

oedd y tro cyntaf i ni allu adrodd yn ôl yn erbyn y targed o 3% yn yr 

ardaloedd datganoledig. Dangosodd bod yr allyriadau yn 2011 yn 

29.26MtC02e, sy’n cyfateb i ostyngiad o 10.1% o gymharu â’r llinell 

sylfaen. O ran y targed ehangach o 40% erbyn 2020, tynnodd yr 

adroddiad sylw at gynnydd sylweddol, gyda’r allyriadau wedi gostwng 

20.6% yn erbyn y llinell sylfaen.   Fodd bynnag, er bod hwn yn gynnydd 

cadarnhaol, fel y bu i ni gydnabod yn yr adroddiad, ni fyddai’r duedd 

bresennol yn cyrraedd ein nod o ostyngiad o 40% erbyn 2020.   

 

Mae manylion y cynnydd fesul pob sector allweddol yn erbyn ein 

targed o 3% yn dangos bod y rhan fwyaf o sectorau wedi sicrhau 

gostyngiad yn eu hallyriadau. Yn benodol, bu cynnydd da yn y Sector 

Gwastraff (8.8%), y Sector Busnes (13.3%), y Sector Preswyl (16.5%) a’r 

Sector Trafnidiaeth (gostyngiad o 6.8%). Roedd y cynnydd da sydd 

wedi’i weld yn y Sector Cyhoeddus, sef gostyngiad o 18.7%, yn 

gadarnhaol iawn hefyd. Fodd bynnag, mae’r allyriadau yn y Sector 

Amaethyddiaeth a Defnydd Tir wedi cynyddu ryw ychydig - cynnydd o 

1.2% yn 2011 - ond roedd etifeddiaeth hanesyddol y coedwigoedd 

sy’n heneiddio yng Nghymru yn ffactor a oedd yn cyfrannu. Yn 

gyffredinol, mae 77% o’r dangosyddion lleihau allyriadau’n dangos 

gwelliant neu sefydlogi. 

Felly, rydym wedi gwneud rhywfaint o gynnydd cadarnhaol o ran 

lleihau allyriadau ond mae’r dirywiad economaidd a’r tymheredd 

mwynach dros y gaeaf unwaith eto’n ffactorau arwyddocaol wrth gwrs. 

Tudalen y pecyn 4



5 
 

Rydym felly’n cydnabod bod rhaid wrth ragor o weithredu sylweddol er 

mwyn parhau i gyflawni yn erbyn y targed o 3% ac i fod ar y llwybr 

tuag at gyrraedd y targed o 40%. Adleisiwyd y gwerthusiad hwn yn 

sylwebaeth annibynnol Comisiwn Cymru ar y Newid yn yr Hinsawdd. 

Roedd y Comisiwn yn croesawu’r gostyngiad mewn allyriadau carbon 

yn erbyn y llinell sylfaen, y ffocws ar y cyswllt rhwng tlodi a newid yn 

yr hinsawdd, a’n cydnabyddiaeth o’r angen am ganolbwyntio ein 

hymdrechion unwaith eto ar roi sylw i’r diffyg yn erbyn y targed o 40%.  

 

Y Camau Nesaf  

 

Fel y cyhoeddwyd gan y Gweinidog Cyfoeth Naturiol a Bwyd pan 

gyhoeddwyd yr Adroddiad Blynyddol ym mis Rhagfyr, rydym yn 

diweddaru ein polisi ar y newid yn yr hinsawdd. Mae’r ymarfer hwn ar 

droed ar hyn o bryd a bydd y Gweinidog yn gwneud cyhoeddiad ym 

mis Gorffennaf. Fodd bynnag, dim ond un agwedd ar ein cyflawni wrth 

symud ymlaen yw diweddaru’r polisi ar y newid yn yr hinsawdd, ac 

ategir hyn gan y pwyslais rydym yn ei roi fel Cabinet ar Dwf Gwyrdd. 

Hefyd, bydd y Gweinidog Cyfoeth Naturiol a Bwyd yn cyhoeddi 

prosbectws twf gwyrdd – Buddsoddi yn y Dyfodol. Bydd y prosbectws 

yn datgan sut gall defnydd cynaliadwy o’n cyfoeth naturiol greu model 

economaidd newydd ar gyfer Cymru a fydd yn creu cyfoeth a thwf 

economaidd heddiw ac yn y dyfodol.                                           

 

Tudalen y pecyn 5



Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon

Tudalen y pecyn 5

Yn rhinwedd paragraff(au) ix o Reol Sefydlog 17.42



 1 

Ymateb Ysgrifenedig gan Lywodraeth Cymru i adroddiad Pwyllgor Archwilio’r 
Prif Weinidog yn dwyn y teitl Perthynas Llywodraeth Cymru gyda’r Trydydd 
Sector a’r Sector Preifat. 

22 Ebrill 2014 

 

Mae’r papur hwn yn nodi ymateb Llywodraeth Cymru i adroddiad Pwyllgor Archwilio’r 
Prif Weinidog ar berthynas Llywodraeth Cymru gyda’r Trydydd Sector a’r Sector 
Preifat, yn ôl cais llythyr y Pwyllgor ar 7 Mawrth 2014.  Mae’r papur hwn hefyd yn 
nodi’r wybodaeth ychwanegol yn ymwneud a Phrosiectau Seilwaith Mawr yng 
Ngogledd Cymru, y gwnaethpwyd cais amdanynt hefyd yn llythyr y Pwyllgor ar 7 
Mawrth 2014.  

Mae ymatebion manwl i’r argymhellion o ran perthynas Llywodraeth Cymru 
gyda’r Trydydd Sector a’r Sector Preifat wedi eu nodi isod: 

Argymhelliad 1 

Hoffem i chi egluro mwy am weledigaeth y Llywodraeth ar gyfer partneriaeth strategol 
gyda’r Trydydd Sector ac yn benodol, sut yr eir i’r afael a meysydd sy’n cystadlu â’i 
gilydd o ran gweld gwerth mewn gwaith gwirfoddol a sicrhau hefyd bod y sector 
gwirfoddol yn parhau i fod yn annibynnol ac nid yn gangen arall o’r Llywodraeth. 

Ymateb: Derbyn    

Mae Llywodraeth Cymru yn cydnabod bod sefydliadau’r Trydydd Sector yn gyrff annibynnol, 
dilywodraeth wedi eu sefydlu gan bobl wirfoddol sy’n dewis eu trefnu eu hunain. Mae 
Llywodraeth Cymru yn parchu annibyniaeth y sector. 

Datblygwyd y Cynllun Trydydd Sector newydd a’r atodiad Cod Ymddygiad i Ariannu’r 
Trydydd Sector, mewn partneriaeth gyda Chyngor Partneriaeth y Trydydd Sector yn 
dilyn ymgynghori ehangach, a ddigwyddodd rhwng mis Mai a mis Awst y llynedd.  

Ymdrinnir ag annibyniaeth y sector ym Mhennod 2 o Gynllun y Trydydd Sector 2014. Er 
hwylustod i chi, rwyf wedi atodi’r testun perthnasol isod. 

Natur y Berthynas 

2.4. Mae Llywodraeth Cymru wedi ymrwymo i gydnabod a hybu’r Trydydd Sector. 

 Mae Llywodraeth Cymru yn gwerthfawrogi’r Trydydd Sector am y cyfraniad 
mae’r sector yn ei wneud at les economaidd, cymdeithasol ac amgylcheddol 
hirdymor Cymru, ei phobl a’i chymunedau.  

 

 
2.5. Rhaid i’r berthynas rhwng Llywodraeth Cymru a’r Trydydd Sector fod yn 
seiliedig ar onestrwydd, ymddiriedaeth a pharch at ei gilydd.   

 Mae Llywodraeth Cymru wedi ymrwymo i weld y berthynas hollbwysig hon sydd 
wedi datblygu dros gyfnod hir yn aeddfedu, er lles pobl a chymunedau yng 
Nghymru.  

Tudalen y pecyn 15

Eitem 3



 2 

 

 
2.6. Mae Llywodraeth Cymru yn cydnabod yr angen i weithio mewn partneriaeth 
â’r Trydydd Sector yn ogystal â gwasanaethau a chyrff cyhoeddus eraill, gan 
gynnwys awdurdodau lleol a byrddau iechyd lleol. Rhaid i bartneriaethau 
effeithiol fod yn seiliedig ar werthfawrogiad o gyfraniad unigryw pob parti 

 

 . 
2.7. Mae Llywodraeth Cymru yn disgwyl y bydd y Trydydd Sector yn cydnabod lle 
blaenaf Gweinidogion Cymru wrth lunio polisïau a deddfwriaethau. Yn ei thro, 
mae Llywodraeth Cymru yn cydnabod cwmpas eang ac amrywiaeth 
gweithgarwch gwirfoddol ym mhob rhan o gymdeithas a’r cyfraniad y mae 
mudiadau gwirfoddol a chymunedol a gwirfoddolwyr unigol yn ei wneud at fywyd 
economaidd, cymdeithasol, amgylcheddol, diwylliannol ac ieithyddol Cymru 

 

 . 
2.8. Mae Llywodraeth Cymru yn cydnabod hefyd bod mudiadau Trydydd Sector 
yn gyrff annibynnol sy’n penderfynu ar eu blaenoriaethau eu hunain ac yn rheoli 
eu materion eu hunain, a bod gan y Trydydd Sector ddyletswydd i gynrychioli 
buddiannau’r rheini mae’n eu cynrychioli. Cydnabyddir hefyd bod mudiadau 
Trydydd Sector yn gweithredu’n unol â’r egwyddorion y cawsant eu seilio arnynt 

 

 . Maent yn atebol i’w haelodau a’r unigolion a’r cymunedau maent yn gweithio 
gyda nhw, ac i gyrff rheoleiddio fel y Comisiwn Elusennau.   
2.9. Ar sail y gyd-ddealltwriaeth hon o rolau’i gilydd, cydnabyddir bod y Trydydd 
Sector yn bartner allweddol wrth lunio a chyflawni sawl agwedd ar bolisi 
cyhoeddus, ac o’r herwydd dylai ddatblygu partneriaethau cryf â llywodraeth 
genedlaethol a lleol.  

 

 
Mae Cynllun y Trydydd Sector yn ymrwymo Llywodraeth Cymru ymhellach i 
ddatblygu Fframwaith Ymgysylltu er mwyn cefnogi’r mecanwaith i sicrhau sianelau 
clir o gyfathrebu rhwng Llywodraeth Cymru a’r Trydydd Sector. Mae swyddogion yn y 
broses o ddatblygu’r Fframwaith hon mewn partneriaeth a chynrychiolwyr Cyngor 
Partneriaeth y Trydydd Sector. 

Fel rhan o’r broses honno, caiff y Fframwaith ei rhannu ar draws y llywodraeth a’r 
Trydydd Sector.  Caiff pob Rhwydwaith Trydydd Sector a’r Gweinidog wahoddiad i 
baratoi rhestr o flaenoriaethau lle byddai gweithio ar y cyd o fudd.  

Mae Llywodraeth Cymru yn cefnogi Seilwaith y Trydydd Sector yng Nghymru i ddatblygu a 
chefnogi unigolion a grwpiau i gynnal gweithgarwch gwirfoddol, yn ogystal â darparu arian 
uniongyrchol ac anuniongyrchol i amrediad eang o sefydliadau Trydydd Sector unigol, 

cenedlaethol a lleol sy’n gweithredu yng Nghymru.  Fel y nododd y Gweinidog 
Cymunedau a Threchu Tlodi ar 12 Tachwedd y llynedd, yn ein cefnogaeth i wirfoddoli 
ar draws Cymru, bydd y pwyslais ar gefnogaeth i sefydliadau bychan, lleol sy’n 
gwneud cyfraniad sylweddol i wydnwch cymunedau a chyflwyno gwasanaethau lleol. 

Tudalen y pecyn 16



 3 

Rydym yn cydnabod nad yw gorddibyniaeth ar arian y sector cyhoeddus yn meithrin 
annibyniaeth y Trydydd Sector, na gwaith partneriaeth effeithiol rhwng y sectorau.   
Oherwydd hynny, rydym yn parhau i roi cryn bwyslais ar yr angen i sefydliadau gael 
mynediad at ffynonellau arian eraill. Mae cefnogaeth i godi arian a datblygu sgiliau yn 
y maes hwn yn agweddau allweddol ar waith cyrff seilwaith y Trydydd Sector.  Mae’r 
cyrff yma’n gyfryngau pwysig i gefnogi datblygu sefydliadau a gwirfoddolwyr lleol, ac 
ar yr un pryd, maent yn galluogi’r Trydydd Sector i weithio mewn partneriaeth gyda’r 
sector cyhoeddus ar bob lefel. 

Gallaf sicrhau’r Pwyllgor nad oes bwriad i gyfyngu ar y Trydydd Sector rhag 
gweithredu’n annibynnol.  Mae Llywodraeth Cymru yn parhau i ystyried y Trydydd Sector 

fel partner allweddol ac mae’n gweld gwerth yn y Trydydd Sector am y cyfraniad y mae’n ei 
wneud i les economaidd, cymdeithasol ac amgylcheddol tymor hir Cymru, ei phobl a’i 
chymunedau. 

Oblygiadau ariannol: Dim  

Argymhelliad 2 

Hoffem pe baech chi’n cytuno i osod datganiad blynyddol o flaen y Cynulliad o 
niferoedd, rôl, trefniadau adrodd ac aelodaeth pob Bwrdd Cynghori a Grŵp Gorchwyl 
a Gorffen gan Lywodraeth Cymru dan arweiniad y sector preifat. Hoffem hefyd i’r 
adroddiad amlinellu sut mae pob un o’r byrddau neu grwpiau wedi dylanwadu’n 
uniongyrchol ar weithgareddau adrannau Llywodraeth Cymru yn y flwyddyn flaenorol 
ac i nodi unrhyw newidiadau arfaethedig yn y dull gwaith ar gyfer y flwyddyn ddilynol. 

Ymateb: Derbyn    

Byddwn yn cytuno i osod datganiad blynyddol o flaen y Cynulliad o niferoedd, rôl, 
trefniadau adrodd ac aelodaeth pob Bwrdd Cynghori a Grŵp Gorchwyl a Gorffen gan 
Lywodraeth Cymru dan arweiniad y sector preifat.  Bydd hyn yn cynnwys datganiad 
ar ddylanwad eu gwaith ac unrhyw newidiadau a gynllunnir yn y dull gweithio yn y 
flwyddyn sydd i ddod. 

Oblygiadau ariannol: Dim 

Argymhelliad 3 

Hoffem i chi ddarparu datganiad i ni yn nodi sut, o fewn y broses Asesiad Effaith 
Rheoleiddiol, y mae Llywodraeth Cymru yn asesu effaith gronnus newidiadau polisi a 
deddfau newydd Cymru ar y sector preifat. 

Ymateb: Gwrthod 

Nid yw’n ofyniad cyffredinol o’r broses Asesiad Effaith Rheoleiddiol i asesu effaith 
gronnus newidiadau polisi a deddfwriaeth newydd Cymru ar y sector preifat yn 
gyffredinol.  Byddai cael hyn ym mhob achos yn anghymesur.  Ond, mae Asesiadau 
Effaith Rheoleiddiol wedi ystyried effaith gronnus polisi lle mae sector penodol wedi 
ei heffeithio gan nifer o bolisïau newydd neu newidiadau i’r ddeddf.  Mae’r dull hwn 
yn unol â’r canllawiau cyfredol gan Drysorlys ei Mawrhydi.  Mae’r broses ymgynghori 
yn rhoi’r cyfle i randdeiliaid dynnu sylw Llywodraeth Cymru at achosion pan fyddant 

Tudalen y pecyn 17



 4 

yn credu y gallai’r effeithiau gael effaith gronnus ar sector penodol a bydd 
Llywodraeth Cymru yn parhau i asesu effeithiau o’r fath fesul achos.” 

Oblygiadau ariannol: Dim 

Gofynnwyd hefyd am gopi o’r gwerthusiad o Uned Partneriaid Cymdeithasol Cymru.  
Mae copi o’r adroddiad wedi ei atodi er gwybodaeth i chi. 

 

Mae ymatebion manwl yn ymwneud a’r wybodaeth ychwanegol y gwnaed cais 
amdani ar Brosiectau Seilwaith Mawr yng Ngogledd Cymru wedi eu nodi isod: 

Argymhelliad 1: 

Fel y nodais yn fy ngohebiaeth ar 8 Hydref, mae’r Rhaglen Lywodraethu’n disgrifio’r 
canlyniadau y mae’r Llywodraeth hon yn ymdrechu i’w cyflawni.  Er mwyn gwneud 
cynnydd tuag at y canlyniadau hyn, datblygir polisi’r Llywodraeth ar draws ac o fewn 
pob portffolio Gweinidogaethol yng nghyd-destun y Rhaglen Lywodraethu a chan roi 
ystyriaeth i bolisïau strategol cenedlaethol.  Mae cynnal datblygiad ein holl bolisïau a 
rhaglenni yn rhan o’n hymrwymiad i ddatblygu cynaliadwy fel ein hegwyddor 
drefniadol ganolog.  

 Yn fy ymateb, eglurais sut mae’r broses hon yn gweithio a darperais ddiagram yn 
dangos y berthynas rhwng polisi, rhaglenni a phrosiectau.  Er mwyn rhoi enghraifft, 
roedd hyn yn cynnwys polisïau strategol cenedlaethol megis Cynllun Gofodol Cymru 
a Chynllun Buddsoddi yn Seilwaith Cymru.  O ran yr olaf, mae hwn hefyd yn cynnwys 
y Biblinell sy’n rhan greiddiol o’r Cynllun Buddsoddi yn Seilwaith Cymru.  Mae’r 
Biblinell yn cynnwys data buddsoddi mewn seilwaith cyhoeddus lleol a chenedlaethol 
allweddol. Cynyddu amlygrwydd ac eglurder buddsoddi a gynllunnir mewn seilwaith 
ar draws Cymru, a hynny’n darparu’r wybodaeth i alluogi gwneud penderfyniadau 
buddsoddi ar sail strategaeth a gwneud y mwyaf o gyfleoedd cydweithredol posibl.  

O ran y Cynllun Trafnidiaeth Cenedlaethol, mae’r Gweinidog yr Economi, 
Gwyddoniaeth a Thrafnidiaeth wrthi ar hyn o bryd yn adolygu’r Cynllun Trafnidiaeth 
Cenedlaethol i gynnwys blaenoriaethau rhanbarthol a sefydlu fframwaith trafnidiaeth 
sy’n integreiddio cynllunio trafnidiaeth lleol, rhanbarthol a chenedlaethol.  

Argymhelliad 2: 

Mae Llywodraeth Cymru wedi ymrwymo drwy Ynni Cymru: Newid Carbon Isel i 
sicrhau fod cymunedau gaiff eu heffeithio gan ddatblygiadau ynni’n cael budd mawr 
o’r datblygiadau rheiny, ac rydym wrthi’n rhagweithiol gyda’r diwydiant a phartneriaid i 
sicrhau bod y cyfoeth a gynhyrchir drwy ddatblygu ynni yng Nghymru o fudd i 
gymunedau a’i fod yn gosod sail i ffyniant economaidd tymor hir Cymru. 

Hyd yma, mae ein prif sylw wedi bod ar ddatblygiadau gwynt ar y tir ac Ynys Ynni 
Môn. Rydym wedi gweithio’n agos gyda’r diwydiant gwynt ar y tir i wneud asesiad o’r 
cyfleoedd i ddod â budd economaidd a chymunedol o ddatblygiadau gwynt 
masnachol yng Nghymru. Rydym wedi nodi mai’r manteision sy’n trawsffurfio fwyaf a 

Tudalen y pecyn 18



 5 

ddaw o ddatblygiadau yw’r budd economaidd i fusnesau Cymru a’r cadwyni cyflenwi, 
gan arwain at greu swyddi a buddsoddi. 

Mae Rhaglen Ynys Ynni Môn yn parhau i nodi a gwireddu cyfleoedd i fusnesau o 
Gymru sicrhau cyfleoedd o bob datblygiad ynni sydd ar yr Ynys. Mae’r cymorth yn 
amrywio o ddatblygu sgiliau yn y tymor hir, i sicrhau fod gan bobl leol y sgiliau y bydd 
ar fusnesau eu hangen, yn ogystal â digwyddiadau Cwrdd â’r Prynwr ym mhob cam 
o’r gadwyn gyflenwi. 

Drwy weithio mewn partneriaeth, mae’r diwydiant gwynt wedi cytûn o i ‘Ddatganiad’ 
sy’n eu rhwymo i weithio gyda’n cymunedau i sicrhau eu bod yn derbyn budd 
cadarnhaol tymor hir. Nod y Datganiad yw sicrhau dull cyson, eglur, cydweithredol a 
strategol wrth ymwneud a chymunedau ac amrediad o randdeiliaid. Hyd yma, mae 
dros ddwsin o ddatblygwyr ac Ynni Adnewyddol Cymru wedi ymuno i ddangos eu 
hymrwymiad. Mae’r Datganiad yn ymrwymiad gan y datblygwyr i sicrhau dull cyson 
a’r arfer orau o ran y ffordd y maen nhw’n ymwneud â chymunedau, ac i sicrhau’r 
budd economaidd a chymunedol mwyaf posibl. Fel rhan o’r Datganiad, mae’r 
diwydiant wedi cytuno i gydweithio mewn ardaloedd lle mae mwy nag un fferm wynt 
fel y caiff y gymuned y budd mwyaf. Rhan allweddol o’r Datganiad yw’r ymrwymiad 
gan ddatblygwyr i gefnogi cymunedau i wneud yn siŵr fod ganddynt fynediad at y 
cyngor a’r gwasanaethau gorau posibl pan fydd y cynllun budd cymunedol yn cael ei 
sefydlu a’i weinyddu. 

Rydym yn parhau i weithio gyda’r diwydiant i sicrhau sylw mwy i gyflwyno budd ar 
raddfa ranbarthol a sicrhau mwy o arian lle bo modd. 

Rydym bellach wedi lansio ein Cofrestr o Fudd Economaidd a Chymunedol o 
Ffermydd Gwynt ar y Tir, ac mae’n darparu mecanwaith hawdd ei defnyddio er mwyn 
adrodd - yn glir - am lefel a natur y budd sy’n gysylltiedig â datblygiadau gwynt ar y tir 
yng Nghymru. Mae’r Gofrestr yn cynnig cyfle unigryw i’r diwydiant ddangos sut maen 
nhw’n rhoi budd i gymunedau Cymru ac Economi Cymru, a daw yn adnodd 
gwybodaeth a chanllaw gwerthfawr i gymunedau sy’n datblygu eu pecynnau budd 
cymunedol eu hunain. 

Argymhelliad 6: 

O astudiaethau cynharach, nodwyd dau ddewis arall i fynd i’r afael â materion 
capasiti ar y rhan hon o’r rhwydwaith.  Mae’r dewisiadau eraill yma’n gofyn am 
asesiad Cam 2 Arweiniad ac Arfarnu Trafnidiaeth Cymru i benderfynu pa lwybr sy’n 
briodol.  Yn dilyn penderfyniad ar y llwybr a ddewisir, y camau nesaf fyddai datblygu’r 
dyluniad a chyhoeddi cynigion.  
 
O ystyried y gwaith sydd ei angen i ddatblygu’r cynllun, y dyddiad cynharaf tebygol i 
gychwyn adeiladu ar y tir fyddai yn 2019.  

Argymhelliad 7: 

Gellir cael mynediad at fanylion ein cynlluniau gwella ffyrdd yng Ngogledd Cymru ar 
wefan Llywodraeth Cymru drwy’r ddolen ganlynol: 
http://wales.gov.uk/topics/transport/roads/schemes/?lang=en 

Tudalen y pecyn 19

http://wales.gov.uk/topics/transport/roads/schemes/?lang=en


 6 

Mae’r Gweinidog yr Economi, Gwyddoniaeth a Thrafnidiaeth wedi sefydlu tasglu 
newydd i ddarparu cyngor ar y materion allweddol ar gyfer trafnidiaeth yng Ngogledd 
Cymru gan gynnwys cysylltiadau ar draws y ffin.  Bydd y Tasglu’n darparu cyngor 
drwy hyn i gyd a disgwylir yr adroddiad terfynol ym mis Rhagfyr 2014. Mae’r Tasglu 
wedi ei gadeirio gan y Gweinidog Llywodraeth Leol a Busnes y Llywodraeth. 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 20



 

 

 
WALES SOCIAL PARTNERS UNIT EVALUATION 
 
Service Review: Facilitating Social Partners' 
Engagement with the Welsh Government 

 
 
 
Final report  

Presented to: The Wales Social Partners Unit 

 
 
 
September 2013 
Arad Research 
 

  
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
  

Tudalen y pecyn 20



 

WALES SOCIAL PARTNERS UNIT EVALUATION 

Service Review: Facilitating Social Partners' Engagement with the 
Welsh Government 

 
 

2 

 

Contents 
 

  
Executive summary ........................................................................................... 3 
 

1 Introduction to the evaluation and service review .................................. 9 
1.1 Background to the WSPU ......................................................................................................................... 9 
1.2 Aims of the evaluation................................................................................................................................ 9 
1.3 Overview of research methods used ............................................................................................... 10 
1.4 Acknowledgements.................................................................................................................................... 11 

 

2 Awareness and use of the WSPU services ............................................ 12 
2.1 Awareness of the WSPU services ..................................................................................................... 12 
2.2 Use of the WSPU services ..................................................................................................................... 14 

 

3 Effectiveness and value of the WSPU services ..................................... 19 
3.1 Views of WSPU members and Social Partners .......................................................................... 19 
3.2 Views of Welsh Government officials ............................................................................................. 24 

 

4 The WSPU performance against contractual requirements.................. 27 
4.1 The extent to which the WSPU has met the aims and objectives of the contract . 27 
4.2 The cost effectiveness of the WSPU’s services ........................................................................ 28 
4.3 The experiences of customer organisations in their dealings with the WSPU ....... 28 

 

5 Future services ........................................................................................ 30 
5.1 Views of WSPU members and Social Partners .......................................................................... 30 
5.2 Views of Welsh Government officials ............................................................................................. 32 
5.3 Potential changes to services .............................................................................................................. 33 

 

6 Recommendations ................................................................................... 36 
 

Annexe 1: Figures ........................................................................................... 38 

Tudalen y pecyn 21



 

WALES SOCIAL PARTNERS UNIT EVALUATION 

Service Review: Facilitating Social Partners' Engagement with the 
Welsh Government 

 
 

3 

 

Executive summary  
 

Introduction 
 

1. This report presents the findings of an evaluation of the Wales Social Partners Unit, 

focusing on its performance in relation to the contract to facilitate Social Partners’ 

engagement with the Welsh Government. At the request of the Welsh Government a 

service review was also carried out as part of this project. 

 

2. The Wales Social Partners Unit was created in September 2001 to provide services 

that improve the engagement of the business representative bodies in Wales and the 

Wales TUC (the Social Partners) with the Welsh Government and the National 

Assembly for Wales.  

 

3. The WSPU is wholly funded by the Welsh Government under a contract secured 

through competitive tender. Its members are the CBI, FSB, Chamber Wales, EEF 

Cymru, FPB and the Wales TUC. Its main aims are to: 

 

o Facilitate the interface between the Social Partners and the Welsh Government; 

o Provide an impartial and comprehensive research and evaluation service to the 

Social Partners; 

o Operate effectively with a wide range of partner organisations 

o Assist in the development and maintenance of the Social Partner network. 

 

4. The WSPU provides these services after winning a competitive Welsh Government 

for a three year contract that ends on 18 January 2014. 

 

5. The programme of research for the evaluation included desk research to explore 

original aims and objectives of the WSPU services; an electronic survey of the 

WSPU members and service users which focused on beneficiaries views’ on the 

quality and relevance of the WSPU services; and fieldwork consisting of qualitative 

interviews with users of WSPU services, WSPU staff and board members, and 

Welsh government officials. 

Awareness and use of the WSPU services 
 

6. Information and research services provided by the WSPU are used extensively by 

the core group of Social Partners. The services are well developed, valued and 

tailored to user needs. Awareness of the services – and how they are funded – is 

very high amongst Social Partners who contributed to the evaluation.  

 

7. Social Partners noted that the information and research services help guide and 

inform day-to-day activities within their respective organisations and keep them „in 

the loop‟ regarding ongoing events and policy debates.  

 

Tudalen y pecyn 22



 

WALES SOCIAL PARTNERS UNIT EVALUATION 

Service Review: Facilitating Social Partners' Engagement with the 
Welsh Government 

 
 

4 

 

“The detailed and filtered reports form Plenary and other releases from Welsh 

Government are invaluable to my organisation. The work of the WSPU is 

essential in providing support to a number of committees providing cohesive 

responses to the Welsh Government. It would make it extremely difficult to 

provide, consistent and organised, industry responses and input to the Welsh 

Government without the benefit of the WSPU.”  (Social Partner survey 

respondent) 

 

8. Social Partners also disseminate the information received more widely. As a 

consequence, information services provided by the WSPU extend beyond the core 

group of service users and further contribute to direct greater Social Partner 

engagement and the development of additional networks. 

 

9. Awareness and use of the WSPU’s service across Welsh Government departments 

is considerably less well developed. There is some confusion regarding the specific 

roles of the WSPU and its name amongst some officials. THE WSPU outlined that it 

was now taking a more proactive approach to engagement with the Welsh 

Government as a result of the recent Business Scheme review. 

 

10. There is consensus that ensuring greater use by Welsh Government officials of 

WSPU’s knowledge and networks to support Social Partner engagement should be a 

priority moving forward. Some officials had recently met, or made contact with, the 

WSPU and saw it as the beginning of „a more constructive approach to working with 

the WSPU and Social Partners more generally‟. 

 

Effectiveness and value of the WSPU services 
 

11. There are high levels of satisfaction regarding the value of the services currently 

provided by the WSPU among Social Partners who contributed to the evaluation. 

Almost all Social Partners agree that the WSPU provides an impartial and 

comprehensive research service and the Unit is seen as a trusted and authoritative 

source of information and valued for its independence. 

 

“The high quality of the service given by WSPU is representative of the wide 

experience which exists within the Unit. The staff at WSPU have always been 

keen to ensure that the information they provide is relevant and accessible 

which means that I am able to distribute it to my members in certainty of its 

quality.” (Social Partner survey respondent) 

 

12. The services currently provided by the WSPU have contributed to providing 

additional capacity for Social Partners, particularly the smaller organisations, to 

operate and engage more effectively. Social Partners outlined that the services 

enable them to keep up to date with policy developments, while saving time and 

resources for their organisations and members.  

 

Tudalen y pecyn 23



 

WALES SOCIAL PARTNERS UNIT EVALUATION 

Service Review: Facilitating Social Partners' Engagement with the 
Welsh Government 

 
 

5 

 

13. Social Partners consider that the WSPU has contributed to better engagement 

between Social Partners and the National Assembly and Welsh Government by 

acting as an interface between them. Contributors to the evaluation outlined that the 

WSPU has brought diverse organisations together, establishing common ground, 

and contributing to developing a united voice for the Social Partners on some policy 

issues. 

 

“This information and the support and advice given by WSPU has not only 

increased our own interaction with Government and the Assembly but 

crucially, has facilitated our engagement with other social partners in Wales. 

WSPU have been excellent at keeping us abreast of the priorities and issues 

affecting the social partners and assisting our understanding of Government 

priorities and processes.” (Social Partner survey respondent) 

 

14. Effective management structures have been put in place by the WSPU and the 

Board of Directors ensures accountability and transparency. The Board consists of 

representatives from Social Partner organisations who therefore have ownership of 

the organisation and are responsible for overseeing the management of the Unit’s 

work 

 

15.  The evaluation found a range of opinion among Welsh Government officials on the 

value and effectiveness of the services currently delivered by the WSPU. Overall, 

there was a recognition of the value of services but also a view that more work needs 

to be done to ensure that the benefits are enjoyed by Welsh Government 

departments as well as by Social Partners.  

The WSPU’s performance against contractual requirements  
 

16. Evidence collected during this evaluation indicates that the WSPU has successfully 

met the aims and objectives of its contract with the Welsh Government. The WSPU’s 

monitoring and information services are of high quality and of relevance to the needs 

of Social Partners. 

 

17. The services currently provided by the WSPU have contributed to the maintenance 

and development of the network of Social Partners allowing all voices and sectors to 

be heard – both within the network, and in terms of engagement with the Welsh 

Government  

 

18. In view of the lack of directly comparable services, it is difficult to carry out a value for 

money assessment of the services provided by the WSPU.  However the model 

currently delivered is seen by service users as being cost effective and delivering 

added value to Social Partners.  

 

19. The Welsh focus of the services provided by the WSPU; their impartiality and 

independence; and the level of trust developed across the network as a result of their 

Tudalen y pecyn 24



 

WALES SOCIAL PARTNERS UNIT EVALUATION 

Service Review: Facilitating Social Partners' Engagement with the 
Welsh Government 

 
 

6 

 

provision were considered to have provided additional capacity and engagement 

opportunities for the Social Partners. 

 

“WSPU gives us a much more Welsh focus and an understanding of the 

Welsh mind-set which is crucial when identifying relevant information and 

advice.” (Social Partner) 

 

20. For Welsh Government officials, however, more work was needed to ensure that the 

Welsh Government also sees the benefit of services. While services has been 

delivered according to the contractual terms on a request basis, officials considered a 

more proactive role from the WSPU or another organisation delivering these services 

in future would be beneficial. 

 

“There is still progress to be made to deliver more value for the Welsh Government 

[from these services]. At the heart of this is the role of WSPU and its potential value 

to Welsh Government officials and departments. This needs to be communicated far 

better and there should be better working protocols and the WSPU to take a more 

proactive approach – observing, analysing and facilitating rather than simple 

monitoring.” (Welsh Government official) 

 

21. The high value placed on the services by the Social Partners and the potential for 

rebalancing the services to improve engagement with the Welsh Government 

suggest that there is a rationale for their continuation. A refreshed Business Scheme, 

plus a contract focused on proactive engagement with the Welsh Government and 

continued high quality services to the Social Partners, will be key to maintaining the 

value and effectiveness of this engagement. 

Future Services  
 

22. An overwhelming majority of Social Partners who responded to the evaluation 

consider that there is a continued need for dedicated services to support Social 

Partner engagement in Wales.   

 

23. The majority of Social Partners also considered that discontinuing the services 

currently delivered by the WSPU would have a negative impact on their levels of 

engagement with the National Assembly and Welsh Government.  

 

24. Welsh Government officials also supported the need for services to promote Social 

Partner engagement. Some officials take the view that the services delivered under 

the contract by the Welsh Government could place a greater emphasis on building 

capacity among Social Partners to engage with the Welsh Government.  

 

25. Both Social Partners and Welsh Government officials considered that there was 

scope for either additional services to be provided or for a rebalancing of the services 

Tudalen y pecyn 25



 

WALES SOCIAL PARTNERS UNIT EVALUATION 

Service Review: Facilitating Social Partners' Engagement with the 
Welsh Government 

 
 

7 

 

delivered by the WSPU or any future service provider during the next contractual 

period.  

 

26. Additional potential services and roles could include maintaining and enhancing the 

core elements of the information service; playing a lead role in supporting more 

focused meetings of the Council for Economic Renewal; more targeted and 

strategically-focused research support services; and more proactive and targeted 

approaches to engagement.  

 

27. There was an acknowledgement that the Welsh Government has a key role to play in 

this process and in making clear its own expectations and requirements as part of the 

next contractual agreement from 2014 onwards. 

 

“WSPU plays an important role in supporting social partner engagement with Welsh 

Government but the quality of this work is dictated to an extent by the commitment of 

Welsh Government departments. Some areas of government are better than others 

at engaging so it follows that the WSPU service would be enhanced greatly by a 

more joined-up and consistent system of engagement from the Welsh Government.” 

(Social Partner survey respondent) 

Recommendations 

Recommendation 1:  An overwhelming majority of Social Partners who responded to the 

evaluation consider that there is a continued need for dedicated services to support social 

partner engagement in Wales. Evidence suggests high levels of satisfaction and that the 

WSPU has met its contractual requirements, indicating that the services delivered are well 

developed, effective and highly valued by Social Partners. These services should therefore 

continue to be funded by the Welsh Government and delivered in support of the Business 

Scheme.  

 
Recommendation 2:  Evidence suggests that there is a case for the Welsh Government to 

review the overall profile and delivery of services provided in order to both ensure Social 

Partners and its own departments and officials benefit further from these services.  This will 

ensure that they balance the need to support the capacity of Social Partners to engage 

effectively with the Welsh Government while ensuring added value for Welsh Government 

officials.  

 
Recommendation 3:  Future service contracts should therefore place greater emphasis on 

a more proactive and targeted approach to engagement from service providers. This should 

include regular meetings between the Welsh Government and any future service provider 

and agreed monitoring processes to reflect progress. The Welsh Government has a key role 

to play in this by making clear its own expectations and requirements as part of the next 

contractual agreement from 2014 onwards. 

 

Recommendation 4:  In reviewing the services, there is a particular need to take account of 

the perceived value of the core information services (notably the weekly summaries of 

Assembly business) and the resources required to deliver these services which provide a 

crucial initial point of information for many Social Partners, particularly smaller organisations. 

Tudalen y pecyn 26



 

WALES SOCIAL PARTNERS UNIT EVALUATION 

Service Review: Facilitating Social Partners' Engagement with the 
Welsh Government 

 
 

8 

 

 
Recommendation 5:  Early engagement is seen as paramount for both Social Partners and 

Welsh Government officials who contributed to the review. Future service providers could 

therefore place a greater emphasis on building capacity among Social Partners towards 

early engagement with the Welsh Government. This could potentially entail a shift in 

emphasis to more tailored and strategic work with Social Partners, including by providing 

more targeted support to Social Partners in planning and preparation for CER meetings 

  
Recommendation 6:  Evidence underlines a specific need to raise awareness of the WSPU 

and the services it provides across Welsh Government departments. While actions are 

already underway to formalise links between departments and Social Partners, the WSPU or 

any future service provider should consider what additional proactive steps it can take to 

raise its profile. This could include developing guidance or good practice case studies in 

Social Partner engagement. The Welsh Government should also play a key role in this 

process, supporting any future service provider to engage effectively across Welsh 

Government departments and ensuring senior level support for such engagement. 

 
Recommendation 7: As the WSPU staff continue to establish contacts with Welsh 

Government officials across departments, discussions should focus on the type of services 

and practical support any future service provider can offer Welsh Government officials. This 

will contribute to ensuring that the service provider is used as an effective engagement 

mechanism, as recommended in the Review of the Business Scheme. 
 

Recommendation 8:  Evidence suggests that Social Partners value the WSPU’s impartiality 

and the fact that the services focus specifically on Welsh policy and programmes. Any 

similar future services to support Social Partner engagement should therefore remain 

independent of the Welsh Government and focus on the needs of the Social Partners in 

Wales.  
 

Recommendation 9: Following on from the recommendation in the Review of the Business 

Scheme, any future service provider should use its expertise and networks to play a lead 

role in supporting more focused meetings of the Council for Economic Renewal. The Welsh 

Government should facilitate this by working with any future service provider to clarify roles 

and functions in facilitating more focused discussions through the CER.   

 
Recommendation 10:  While the WSPU may be a recognisable brand for the organisations 

it has served for over a decade, its identity and profile still need to be raised among a 

number of key Welsh Government partners. Looking ahead, future service providers may 

wish to consider whether a rebranding of the services is necessary to achieve this.  
 

Recommendation 11:  Any significant changes proposed to the services provided by any 

future service provider should be accompanied by a detailed assessment of current 

resources. This assessment should ensure that there is enough capacity and suitable skills 

within a staff team to be able to deliver services to the highest quality. 
 

 

 
 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 27



 

WALES SOCIAL PARTNERS UNIT EVALUATION 

Service Review: Facilitating Social Partners' Engagement with the 
Welsh Government 

 
 

9 

 

1 Introduction to the evaluation and service review 
 

 

The Wales Social Partners Unit (WSPU) commissioned Arad to undertake an evaluation of 

its performance in relation to the contract to facilitate Social Partners’ engagement with the 

Welsh Government. At the request of the Welsh Government a service review was also 

carried out as part of this project. This report presents the findings of the research, carried 

out between April and July 2013. 

 

1.1 Background to the WSPU 

 

The Wales Social Partners Unit was created in September 2001 to provide services that 

improve the engagement of the business representative bodies in Wales and the Wales TUC 

(the social partners) with the Welsh Government and the National Assembly for Wales. The 

WSPU is wholly funded by the Welsh Government under a contract secured through 

competitive tender. Its members are the CBI, FSB, Chamber Wales, EEF Cymru, FPB and 

the Wales TUC. Its main aims are to: 

 
o Facilitate the interface between the Social Partners and the Welsh Government; 

o Provide an impartial and comprehensive research and evaluation service to the 

Social Partners; 

o Operate effectively with a wide range of partner organisations 

o Assist in the development and maintenance of the Social Partner network. 

The WSPU provides these services after winning a competitive Welsh Government tender 

for a three year contract that ends on 18 January 2014. 

 

1.2 Aims of the evaluation 

 

The specification for the evaluation noted that the review should examine: 

 
o the extent to which WSPU has met the aims and objectives of the contract; 

 

o the cost effectiveness of WSPU’s services; 

 

o the experiences of customer organisations, including the Welsh Government,  in their 

dealings with WSPU. 

In addition to an evaluation of the performance of the existing contract the review considered 

the following questions: 

 

 Is the service provided under the contract valued by the social partners and the 

Welsh Government? 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 28



 

WALES SOCIAL PARTNERS UNIT EVALUATION 

Service Review: Facilitating Social Partners' Engagement with the 
Welsh Government 

 
 

10 

 

 Is the service providing additional benefits and lasting/meaningful improvements to 

engagement and facilitation? 

 

 Is there a rationale for the Welsh Government supporting social partner engagement 

and facilitation through the continued commissioning of such a service? 

 

 Are there clear accountability and governance structures in place for delivery of the 

contract? 

 

 Does the service provided under the contract offer value for money and are the 

benefits realised as a result of the service being in place greater than might be 

obtained by providing funding in an alternative way to support social partner 

engagement and facilitation? 

 

 What lessons have been learnt to date regarding provision of the service, for 

example in relation to models of delivery and capacity of partners to deliver, and is 

there a need to amend the service? 

 

 Are there evidence-based recommendations that can be made for future 

improvements to the service? 

 

1.3 Overview of research methods used 

 

During an initial meeting between the Arad research team and WSPU staff a number of 

themes and topics were identified. These would serve both to organise and present 

evidence, and provide additional context to the review. These themes were: 

 

o Awareness and use of the WSPU services 

o Effectiveness and value of the WSPU services 

o Future services  

The programme of research included the following tasks:  

 
i. Desk research to explore original aims of and objectives of the WSPU 

services as well as possible changes to services in the light of the Business 

Scheme Review;  

 

ii. Fieldwork: Survey of the WSPU members and service users 

 

 An electronic survey of WSPU services beneficiaries. Topics covered in 

the survey linked to the three themes outlined above and included a focus 

on beneficiaries views’ on the quality and relevance of the WSPU services 

and their impact on their organisations and engagement with the Welsh 

Government. The survey was sent to 115 individuals who receive 

Tudalen y pecyn 29



 

WALES SOCIAL PARTNERS UNIT EVALUATION 

Service Review: Facilitating Social Partners' Engagement with the 
Welsh Government 

 
 

11 

 

information from the WSPU.  42 responses were received, with 39 of 

those responses sufficiently complete to form part of the analysis. This 

represents a good response rate (34 per cent) and is at a similar level to 

the number of responses received during previous evaluations of the 

WSPU (2007 and 2010). 

 

iii. Fieldwork: Interviews with key stakeholders 

 

 Qualitative interviews with users of WSPU services; WSPU staff and 

board members; and Welsh Government officials.  16 interviews 

(including nine with Welsh Government officials) were carried out in total 

either face-to-face or by telephone. A semi-structured interview guide was 

developed to help steer these interviews, again based on the three main 

themes of the evaluation, 

 

1.4 Acknowledgements 

 

We would like to place on record our thanks to all those who contributed their time and effort 

to this evaluation.  All contributions – both written submissions and contributions during 

interviews – were greatly appreciated and provided the team with valuable evidence upon 

which to base this report and its findings.   
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 30



 

WALES SOCIAL PARTNERS UNIT EVALUATION 

Service Review: Facilitating Social Partners' Engagement with the 
Welsh Government 

 
 

12 

 

2 Awareness and use of the WSPU services 
 

The WSPU provides a range of key services designed to facilitate and build capacity for 

engagement between the Social Partners and the Welsh Government. This section of the 

report focuses on the awareness and use of the WSPU services by WSPU members and 

Social Partners and Welsh Government officials.  

2.1 Awareness of the WSPU services 

2.1.1 Awareness among WSPU members and Social Partners 

 
Survey responses indicate a very good level of awareness of the services currently provided 

by the WSPU among those who are on the organisation’s distribution list (see Annexe 1, 

figure 1 for results). Given that the WSPU has been providing broadly similar services to 

members and Social Partners since 2001 it is perhaps unsurprising that levels of awareness 

are so high.  

 

In summary:  

 

 31 out of 38 respondents (82 per cent) indicated they were aware of the WSPU’s 

aims and objective of assisting with the development and maintenance of the Social 

Partner network;  

 Almost all respondents (37 out of 38 or 97 per cent) noted that they were aware of 

the WSPU’s role to „facilitate the interface‟ between the Social Partners and the 

Welsh Government‟.  

Some survey respondents commented further that they were „fully aware of the role played 

in arranging ongoing consultation and engagement [with the Welsh Government]‟. Another 

noted that, since meeting up with the WSPU staff, they were now well aware of the 

organisation’s aims and objectives and the support they provide „to fellow trade federations‟. 

This underlines the importance of direct contact between the WSPU and Social Partners in 

communicating the unit’s functions and the extent of its links with the network of Social 

Partners.   

 

Furthermore, respondents demonstrated a good awareness of how the services delivered by 

the WSPU were funded: 32 out of 37 respondents (86 per cent) were aware that WSPU 

delivers services under contract to the Welsh Government.  A number of questionnaire 

respondents commented that the WSPU had explained how the services were funded when 

they had initially established contact with them.  In follow up interviews several Social 

Partner representatives acknowledged the role that the Welsh Government is playing by 

investing in wider engagement with the business community through the WSPU.    

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 31



 

WALES SOCIAL PARTNERS UNIT EVALUATION 

Service Review: Facilitating Social Partners' Engagement with the 
Welsh Government 

 
 

13 

 

2.1.2 Awareness among Welsh Government officials 

 

Arad conducted interviews with senior civil servants from a range of Welsh Government 

departments1. These interviews revealed very mixed levels of awareness of the WSPU and 

the services it provides amongst these officials.  Some of the officials interviewed had good 

knowledge of the type of support and services provided by the WSPU and were able to 

provide recent examples of contact with the team as well as plans to work with them in 

future.   

 

In addition, where there had been contact between officials and the WSPU, there was a 

sense that there was scope to build on these links; and to build ‘Social Partner engagement’ 

more effectively into policy and programme design and delivery.  There was awareness 

among some officials that this work has begun, driven largely by the review of the Business 

Scheme, to identify departmental leads for Social Partner engagement.  

 

WSPU representatives also outlined that they were now taking a more proactive approach to 

engagement with the Welsh Government as a result of the Business Scheme review. With 

the support of the Welsh Government they outlined that they have recently contacted around 

20 officials. Some officials had recently met, or made contact with, the WSPU as a 

consequence and saw it as the beginning of „a more constructive approach to working with 

the WSPU and Social Partners more generally‟. 

 

“I was asked to attend a meeting with other representatives from departments to be 

the Welsh Government‟s link with the WSPU. So far, I have only attended one 

meeting but I am now fully aware of what the WSPU does and the services it 

provides to social partners.”  (Welsh Government official) 

 

Other officials, however, acknowledged they had limited awareness of the WSPU’s role and 

the services it is contracted to deliver. Those officials who noted that they were not aware of 

the WSPU, explained that they had not had contact with staff at the Unit.  In most cases 

these officials noted that they had direct links with business representatives and trades 

unions and were unsure as to the added value that the WSPU could potentially provide.  

 

“If you want me to use [the services provided by the WSPU] I need to know what 

they‟re for and how they can benefit us in delivering programmes and business”. 

(Welsh Government official) 

 

The name Wales Social Partners Unit also created some confusion among several officials. 

One noted that his understanding was that the Unit’s members included both the private 

sector and trade unions, and that to him, the term Social Partners did not convey this well.  

Another official, who had little knowledge of the WSPU, assumed that it provided services to 

support ‘social enterprises’.   

 

                                                
1 The departments represented included Economy, Science and Transport; People, Places and Corporate 

Services; Sustainable Futures; Local Government and Communities; WEFO; Health and Social Services; and 

Education and Skills.  

Tudalen y pecyn 32



 

WALES SOCIAL PARTNERS UNIT EVALUATION 

Service Review: Facilitating Social Partners' Engagement with the 
Welsh Government 

 
 

14 

 

Notwithstanding recent activity to strengthen direct links between the WSPU and Welsh 

Government departments, this current lack of awareness illustrates a need to ensure there is 

clear awareness among officials of the functions and potential benefits of the services 

delivered by the WSPU to them.  In later sections of this report, we consider some potential 

further actions that could be taken to improve links between the WSPU, or any organisation 

delivering similar services in future, and the Welsh Government. 

2.2 Use of the WSPU services 

 

2.2.1 Use of the WSPU services by WSPU members and Social Partners 

 

WSPU members and Social Partners were asked to indicate how often they use the WSPU 

services through the survey (see Annexe 1, figure 2 for results). In summary: 

 

 Email summaries were the most frequently used services, with 35 out of 38 

respondents (92 per cent) using the Weekly Summaries of forthcoming National 

Assembly Business; 

 

 28 out of 37 respondents (76 per cent) used the email service relating to Welsh 

Government, National Assembly for Wales, Wales Office and WEFO activities while 

25 out of 36 respondents (69 per cent) used e-mailed Targeted National Assembly 

for Wales (NAW) Committee excerpts frequently; 

 

 16 out of 34 respondents (47 per cent) of respondents frequently asked for client 

specific information and advice while a further 8 (23 per cent) used this service 

occasionally; 

 

 The website and Twitter feeds were the least used ‘services’. 4 out of 34 respondents 

(12 per cent) frequently used the website, with a further 15 (44 per cent) occasionally 

using the website. 5 out of 33 respondents (15 per cent) frequently used the Twitter 

feeds, with a further 12 (36 per cent) occasionally and 12 (36 per cent) never using 

the Twitter feeds. 

This data is consistent with the findings of the previous evaluation of the WSPU.  In 2010, 

the email-based summaries of forthcoming Assembly business were also identified as the 

service used most frequently by Social Partners2. This suggests that service users continue 

to see the value of the information provided.  Social Partners noted that the summaries and 

the information contained helps guide and inform day-to-day activities within their respective 

organisations and keep them „in the loop‟ regarding ongoing events and policy debates.  

 

“The detailed and filtered reports form Plenary and other releases from Welsh 

Government are invaluable to my organisation. The work of the WSPU is essential in 

providing support to a number of committees providing cohesive responses to the 

WG. It would make it extremely difficult to provide, consistent and organised, industry 
                                                
2 In 2010, 89 per cent of respondents indicated that they use the weekly summaries of forthcoming Assembly 

business ‘frequently’. (Evaluation of the Wales Social Partner Unit, Arad Research) 

Tudalen y pecyn 33



 

WALES SOCIAL PARTNERS UNIT EVALUATION 

Service Review: Facilitating Social Partners' Engagement with the 
Welsh Government 

 
 

15 

 

responses and input to the WG without the benefit of the WSPU.”  (Social Partner 

survey respondent) 

 

The WSPU reported that it has adapted the information services it provides, taking into 

account feedback from users, to ensure these services remain relevant to user needs. The 

data suggests that users also continue to appreciate the opportunity to request specific or 

bespoke information.  24 out of 34 who answered noted that they have asked for client 

specific information, indicating the readiness of WSPU staff to be responsive to the individual 

needs of organisations.  

 

Use of the WSPU’s Twitter feed and website services is fairly low among those who 

responded to the questionnaire. Qualitative evidence outlines that this may largely be due to 

the regularity of the email services, and the quality and relevance of the information provided 

therein. Nevertheless there is some lack of awareness regarding these elements of the 

WSPU services and strategies to promote them, and the additional information and 

resources they provide, could therefore be enhanced.   

 
“I have not made use of the Twitter stream to date because the e-mail service is so 

comprehensive and reliable.” (Social Partner survey respondent) 

This raises questions about the added value of the Twitter feed to those organisations 

included on the WSPU’s main distribution lists.  However, the dissemination of information 

via Twitter ensures that the WSPU’s services reach out to a far wider network of individuals 

and institutions, spanning higher education, social enterprises, media organisations, private 

and public sector organisations. This evaluation has not sought to collect the views of the 

WSPU’s Twitter followers who are not included on the main distribution lists.  

 

Section 3 of this report explores further evidence on the effectiveness and value of these 

services and shows the clear links between the levels of usage of various services and the 

value that the WSPU members and Social Partners assign to them.  

2.2.2 Use of services by category of Social Partner 

 

WSPU recognise the different interests of the organisations they serve by grouping them 

according to three categories:  

 

 Category A includes WSPU’s core clients; 

 Category B lists organisations that come within the wider social partner group (as 

defined by WSPU), but who are not core clients;  

 Category C includes organisations and clients who have requested information from 

WSPU but who are not included in the narrow definition of social partners.  

 

39 survey responses received were divided as follows between these categories:  

Category A   17 

Category B 14 

Category C 8 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 34



 

WALES SOCIAL PARTNERS UNIT EVALUATION 

Service Review: Facilitating Social Partners' Engagement with the 
Welsh Government 

 
 

16 

 

Analysis of responses by category shows that, overall, Category A and B organisations are 

proportionally more frequent users of weekly summaries of Forthcoming National Assembly 

Business: 

 15 out of 17 Category A respondents noted they use the weekly summaries 

frequently, with the remaining 2 respondents from this Category using them 

occasionally. 14 of the 15 frequent users evaluated the service as ‘very beneficial’. 

 13 out of 14 Category B respondents noted they use the weekly summaries 

frequently. Of this Category 13 out of 14 reported the summaries as ‘very beneficial’. 

 6 out of 8 Category C respondents indicated frequent use of weekly summaries, 5 of 

these indicated they were ‘very beneficial’. 

 

Responses reporting the frequency of use of client specific information and advice indicated 

that a higher proportion of Category A respondents use this service more frequently than 

Category B and C respondents. More specifically 10 out of 17 Category A respondents 

indicated frequent use of client specific information and advice, compared with 4 out of 14 

Category B respondents and 2 out of 8 respondents from Category C.  

 

2.2.3 Wider communication and use of WSPU services 

 

Previous evaluations of the WSPU have found that the information disseminated by the 

Unit’s staff reaches beyond the immediate target audience. Data collected from current 

service users also indicates that users of WSPU services forward materials they receive to 

colleagues within their own organisation as well as individuals in other organisations. This 

demonstrates that the use of WSPU service is not confined to the individuals or 

organisations on the WSPU’s own distribution list.  

 

Survey respondents outlined a number of reasons for passing on this information. These 

included aiming to generate greater awareness of the work of the Welsh Government 

amongst colleagues and partners; using it increase communication and networking 

processes and promoting direct interaction from their membership. 

 

“While information is circulated to all staff members by WSPU as a matter of course, I 

sometimes forward to other individuals within the organisation with commentary. This 

enables us to further debate around specific subjects without having to trawl for 

information on the Welsh Government's website. I also occasionally forward the 

material to third parties that are carrying out work for us. This enables us to have a 

steady stream of communication that can be relied upon.” 

 

Table 1: Do you forward any of the material you receive from WSPU to the following: 

 
Yes, 

frequently 

Yes, 

occasionally 
No 

Other individuals within your organisation?  17 15 4 

Individuals in other organisations?  4 20 12 

Source:  Survey of WSPU service users 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 35



 

WALES SOCIAL PARTNERS UNIT EVALUATION 

Service Review: Facilitating Social Partners' Engagement with the 
Welsh Government 

 
 

17 

 

It is interesting to note the use of services provided by the WSPU to stimulate internal 

discussion among Social Partners about specific policies or issues.  In addition to saving 

time for member organisations (through the provision of summary information), Social 

Partners also reported that services provided by the WSPU also serve to generate ideas and 

topics for ongoing debate. As such, the Unit’s work contributes to raising levels of 

engagement of Social Partners.   

 

2.2.4 Use of the WSPU services by Welsh Government officials 

 
The majority of officials interviewed stated that they had not used services provided by the 

WSPU to date. There was a general feeling among officials that the WSPU has focused 

mainly on its role as a conduit of information from the Welsh Government out to Social 

Partners and in enabling Social Partners to speak with a more coordinated voice on certain 

matters. Representatives from the WSPU noted that under the terms of their contract they 

have only been required to provide these services ‘upon request’.  

 

WSPU representatives did acknowledge, however, that the review of the Business Scheme 

is placing more emphasis on Welsh Government officials using their services. As reported in 

section 2.1.2 this process is linked to efforts to raise awareness within the Welsh 

Government of the roles of the WSPU. Some officials expressed a view that there are now 

opportunities for the WSPU to engage more effectively with various Welsh Government 

departments and that there are indications that this is beginning to happen.    

 

For example since becoming aware of the service, one department has been able to send 

important information to the WSPU to disseminate to its members. Now that they are aware 

of the WSPU they intend to use it as part of future consultation activity, including the process 

of consulting on a Skills Strategy for Older People. Another official noted that he is keen to 

explore opportunities to improve links with Social Partners as part of their efforts to improve 

early engagement with business and with communities. 

 

“When new bills or policies are being developed, we would clearly benefit from a better 

understanding of the view from the private sector as proposals are being worked 

through”.  (Welsh Government official) 

 

Discussions with officials revealed that they would appreciate further opportunities to tap into 

the WSPU’s knowledge and networks.  Several interviewees noted that greater and more 

effective use of the WSPU’s services and expertise by the Welsh Government is important in 

order for the WSPU to demonstrate its full value and maximize its impact.  This view is 

shared by the WSPU’s Board and WSPU representatives outlined that a more proactive 

approach to engage with the Welsh Government was now being undertaken.  

2.2.5 Summary conclusions from this section  

 

 
- Services provided by the WSPU continue to be used extensively by the core group 

of Social Partners;  

 

Tudalen y pecyn 36



 

WALES SOCIAL PARTNERS UNIT EVALUATION 

Service Review: Facilitating Social Partners' Engagement with the 
Welsh Government 

 
 

18 

 

- The services are well developed and valued and tailored to user needs. 

Awareness of the services – and how they are funded – is very high amongst 

Social Partners;  

 

- Social Partners also disseminate the information received more widely; as a 

consequence, information services provided by the WSPU extend beyond the core 

group of service users and further contribute to Social Partner engagement;   

 

- Awareness and use of WSPU’s service across Welsh Government departments is 

considerably less well developed; an increased focus is currently being placed on 

this.  

 

- There is consensus that ensuring greater use by Welsh Government officials of 

WSPU’s knowledge and networks to support Social Partner engagement should 

be a priority moving forward.  

 

Tudalen y pecyn 37



 

WALES SOCIAL PARTNERS UNIT EVALUATION 

Service Review: Facilitating Social Partners' Engagement with the 
Welsh Government 

 
 

19 

 

3 Effectiveness and value of the WSPU services 
 

 

This section of the report focuses on the effectiveness and value of the WSPU services, and 

the respective views of WSPU members, Social Partners and Welsh Government officials. 

The section examines views regarding the quality, effectiveness and accessibility provided 

by the WSPU; their relevance in terms of meeting the needs of Social Partner organisations; 

the potential efficiencies gained in time and resources for organisations and enabling them 

to better serve their members; and the contribution of the WSPU services to better 

engagement between the Social Partners and the Welsh Government  

 

3.1 Views of WSPU members and Social Partners 

 

Overall, survey responses indicate a high level of satisfaction with the WSPU services 

among Social Partners (see Annexe 1, figure 3 for results). In summary: 

 

 Email summaries of forthcoming National Assembly Business are most beneficial to 

respondents. 33 out of 38 survey respondents (87 per cent) indicated summaries are 

‘very beneficial’ with 5 out of 38 (13 per cent) indicating they are ‘beneficial at times’. 

 

 Email services relating to Welsh Government, National Assembly for Wales, Wales 

Office and WEFO activities were considered ‘very beneficial’ by 25 out of 37 survey 

respondents (68 per cent), with a further 8 (22 per cent) considering them to be 

‘beneficial at times.’ 

 

 23 out of 36 respondents (64 per cent) considered the e-mailed Targeted National 

Assembly for Wales (NAW) Committee excerpts to be ‘very beneficial’ while a further 

8 (22 per cent) indicated that they were ‘beneficial at times’ 

 

 20 out of 35 respondents (57 per cent) indicated that client specific services were 

‘very beneficial, while a further 4 (11 per cent) indicated that they were ‘beneficial at 

times’. 11 out of the 35 respondents (31 per cent) had not used these services. 

 

 Twitter feeds and the website were reported as the least beneficial services, relative 

to other services. 5 out of 34 respondents (15 per cent) reported the Twitter feeds as 

‘very beneficial’, 13 (38 per cent) ‘beneficial at times’ and 13 (38 per cent) had not 

used the service. 

 

 The website was considered to be very beneficial by 7 out of 35 respondents (20 per 

cent), beneficial at times by 14 respondents (30 per cent) and 12 of the respondents 

(34 per cent) had not used the service. 

 

 32 out of 38 respondents (84 per cent) indicated the services currently provided by 

the WSPU complement other forms of engagement between social partners and 

Welsh Government. 

Tudalen y pecyn 38



 

WALES SOCIAL PARTNERS UNIT EVALUATION 

Service Review: Facilitating Social Partners' Engagement with the 
Welsh Government 

 
 

20 

 

 

 All Social Partners who responded to the questionnaire consider that WSPU services 

are easy to access. 

These high levels of satisfaction were also reflected in survey responses to a range of 

further questions relating to the effectiveness and value of the services provided by the 

WSPU. Respondents provided additional qualitative evidence and specific examples of the 

services provided by the WSPU that they valued. These are presented below and linked to 

the main aims and objectives of the services currently delivered by the WSPU under its 

contract with the Welsh Government. 

 

3.1.1 Providing an impartial and comprehensive research and evaluation 
service to the Social Partners 

 

A clear majority of survey respondents (25 out of 38, or 66 per cent) ‘strongly agreed’ that 

services currently provided by the WSPU have enabled their organisation to be better 

informed of Welsh Government policy development processes while a further 12 (32 per 

cent) ‘agreed’ (see Annexe 1, figure 4). The WSPU can be therefore seen to be delivering on 

one of its key overall aims and objectives relating to the provision of comprehensive 

research services to its members and Social Partners.  

 

Survey respondents outlined that the services provided by the WSPU are a ‘good source’ of 

information for key issues of interest and that they were kept ‘up to date’ with current issues. 

The high levels of satisfaction also related to the quality of information services received, 

and 36 out of 38 of survey respondents (95 per cent) either strongly agreed or agreed that 

the services are of a consistently high quality (see Annexe 1, figure 5).  

 

“The high quality of the service given by WSPU is representative of the wide 

experience which exists within the Unit. The staff at WSPU have always been keen 

to ensure that the information they provide is relevant and accessible which means 

that I am able to distribute it to my members in certainty of its quality.” 

(Social Partner survey respondent) 

 

Some organisations reported planning much of their work programme around the content of 

WSPU email services, particularly the ‘forthcoming business’ services. They outlined that 

this has enabled them to keep up to date with policy developments, while saving time and 

resources for their organisations and members.  

Other organisations noted the importance of the tailored research services provided by the 

WSPU which also brought benefits to their members. Specific examples of this outlined by 

Social Partners included briefing papers on education in Wales;  information about the 

progress of the Social Care and Wellbeing Bill and a summary of statistics relating to the 

Economic Growth Fund. 

“The most valuable service is when we make specific requests of WSPU and they 

provide us with targeted and specific information - this is most helpful.”(Social Partner 

survey respondent) 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 39



 

WALES SOCIAL PARTNERS UNIT EVALUATION 

Service Review: Facilitating Social Partners' Engagement with the 
Welsh Government 

 
 

21 

 

23 out of 38 survey respondents (61 per cent) of survey respondents ‘strongly agreed’ that 

the WSPU is a trusted and authoritative source of information (see Annexe 1, figure 5). 

Further discussions with Social Partners indicated that the WSPU’s reputation as a trusted 

and reliable source of information appears to be firmly established among Social Partners. 

Social Partner representatives outlined their confidence when using the data provided by the 

WSPU; they also noted that they value the impartiality, independence and reliability of the 

services currently provided by the Unit. 

 

“The support and advice offered by WSPU on Welsh Government developments as 

well as social partner engagement is well-trusted and consistently 

independent.”(Social Partner survey respondent) 

 

Social Partners interviewed considered that the independence of the WSPU from the Welsh 

Government ensures that the information it provides “is delivered in a transparent and 

accessible manner.” They noted that the services currently provided by the WSPU have a 

degree of impartiality and several indicated that it is important to have an “independent 

honest broker” in this role.  

 

“There is a need for the WSPU to provide an independent service from Welsh 

Government, as this ensures impartiality, and therefore provides a more trusted 

source of advice to both Welsh Government and WSPU member organisations.” 

(Social Partner survey respondent) 

 

Further comments from Social Partners reveal that trust has been built up over time as a 

result of the quality and reliability of the services delivered by the WSPU. This trust is an 

example of the added value delivered over the contract periods where services have been 

provided by the WSPU. While somewhat intangible, several interviewees considered that 

this has led to the development of greater consensus on certain issues amongst the Social 

Partner network, an issue that is considered further in the following section. 

 

3.1.2 Facilitating the interface between the Social Partners and the Welsh 
Government and assisting in the development and maintenance of the 
Social Partner network 

 

Activities to support this objective should be seen in the context of the Business Scheme and 

the statutory requirement for Welsh Ministers „to take account of the interests of business in 

the exercise of their functions‟3. Developing the capacity of Social Partners to engage with 

the Welsh Government including in the light of the review of the Business Scheme is 

therefore a key function for the WSPU to deliver under the contract provided by the Welsh 

Government.  

 

20 out of 38 respondents (53 per cent) ‘strongly agreed’ that the services have contributed to 

better engagement between Social Partners and the Welsh Government while a further 12 

(32 per cent) ‘agreed’ with this statement (see Annexe 1, figure 4). Survey respondents and 

interviewees considered that the WSPU’s role as an interface has allowed Social Partners to 

                                                
3Government of Wales Act 2006 (section 75)London: The Stationery Office 

Tudalen y pecyn 40



 

WALES SOCIAL PARTNERS UNIT EVALUATION 

Service Review: Facilitating Social Partners' Engagement with the 
Welsh Government 

 
 

22 

 

build consensus on certain issues. This process is helping them to establish common 

ground, creating a forum for them to express their views and allowing Social Partners to 

develop a collective response to Welsh Government policies.  

 

“The WSPU facilitates a more balanced response to the Welsh Government from a 

range of Social Partners. They enable Social Partners to develop a single response 

on some issues.” (Social Partner survey respondent) 

Data collected during this evaluation echoes evidence from the 2010 study, which reported 

that the engagement services provided by the WSPU had served to ‘galvanise’ social 

partners, enabling a more collective and coherent approach to engagement with the Welsh 

Government. A number of interviewees during the 2013 evaluation noted that Social Partner 

engagement still needs to be facilitated and given direction, a function performed effectively 

by the WSPU in the view of the majority of those who contributed to the survey.  

“This information and the support and advice given by WSPU has not only increased 
our own interaction with Government and the Assembly but crucially, has facilitated 
our engagement with other social partners in Wales. WSPU have been excellent at 
keeping us abreast of the priorities and issues affecting the social partners and 
assisting our understanding of Government priorities and processes.”  

(Social Partner survey respondent) 

 
A number of Social Partners (primarily from smaller organisations) considered that, without 

an organisation delivering the services provided by the WSPU, there may be a tendency to 

only listen to the ‘big players’ (both business representative organisations such as the CBI 

and Institute of Directors and trade unions via the Wales TUC).  

Representatives from these smaller organisations considered that these ‘big players’ often 

have already well-established links with the Welsh Government and are seen to have an 

advantage in terms of lobbying. For them, the platform provided by the WSPU gives them 

more equal access and a voice in a growing Social Partner network.  

“The WSPU levels the playing field and enables smaller organisations to get more 

deeply involved.” (Social Partner survey respondent) 

“As we are such a small organisation we‟re often not in a position to set the agenda 

but the WSPU allows us to punch above our weight.” (Social Partner interviewee) 

The existence of an organisation such as the WSPU was also considered by Social Partners 

to be a key element in ensuring Social Partners are able to engage more directly with policy 

makers. Survey respondents and interviewees outlined that WSPU acts as a ‘gateway’ to 

key contacts within the Welsh Government and also links Social Partners to other partners of 

interest. WSPU’s awareness of the current policy context was mentioned during interviews 

as being a key strength and an asset for members.  

Organisations provided specific examples of the greater potential to engage more directly 

with policy making delivered through the WSPU. One organisation outlined that their 

membership had direct interaction with the Welsh Government regarding the Sustainable 

Development Bill. Another organisation became involved in the Review of EU funding and 

submitted evidence as a result of an intervention from WSPU. 

Tudalen y pecyn 41



 

WALES SOCIAL PARTNERS UNIT EVALUATION 

Service Review: Facilitating Social Partners' Engagement with the 
Welsh Government 

 
 

23 

 

The WSPU also facilitated one organisation’s meeting with the Children’s Commissioner for 

Wales to discuss a Bill about marketing to children and supported another’s campaign for 

the reinstatement of the Procurement Supplier Board. 

 “We feel much closer to policy makers and the Welsh Government as a result of the 

WSPU‟s services.”(Social Partner interviewee) 

3.1.3 Operating effectively with a wide range of partner organisations 

 

Social Partners reported that the services currently provided by the WSPU enabled their 

organisations to operate more effectively and better serve their members. 22 out of 38 

respondents (57 per cent) ‘strongly agreed’ that the services added time and resource 

capacity to their organisation while a further 13 (34 per cent) ‘agreed’ (see Annexe 1 figure 

4). The value of these services to Social Partners, based on the evidence presented, is that 

they provide access to key reports and information promptly and regularly.  

This was considered especially important by smaller organisations without dedicated 

information gathering resources. 22 out of 38 respondents (58 per cent) ‘strongly agreed’ 

that the WSPU staff respond quickly and efficiently to requests for information (see annexe 1 

figure 5). Once again, this is seen as a key aspect of the services provided by the WSPU, 

adding time and capacity for the Social Partners, something that is also reflected in all 

survey respondents outlining that these services are easy to access. 

“WSPU provides strong lines of communication that free up time and capacity for 

more productive activities. Sourcing Welsh Government information would take up a 

considerable amount of my working time if this service was not available.” 

(Social Partner survey respondent) 

 

“Monitoring all of the relevant output to business from the Welsh Government is an 

impossible task for individual business organisations, but crucial to planning work 

streams. With WSPU information and advice it is possible for business organisations 

to keep an eye on the whole, whilst choosing the right consultations to direct limited 

resources into.”(Social Partner survey respondent) 

 
Services provided by the WSPU also promote links between a wide variety of organisations 

across sectors in Wales and this network has developed over the years. Specific examples 

given by Social Partner representatives included one organisation which is now linked more 

closely with Business Representatives as well as third sector organisations such as NEA 

Cymru – a fuel poverty charity as a result of the WSPU’s facilitation.  

 

Another organisation noted that the WSPU have acted as a cross-departmental link to the 

Welsh Government for them because their sector cuts across economy, housing, energy 

and social affairs. This gives them ‘a broader, more rounded understanding’ of Welsh 

Government affairs. 

 
“WSPU is very systematic in this respect, very logical – when you receive 

information from them you know it‟s coming for a reason and will be of interest 

to your organisation and your partners / members.”(Social Partner survey 

respondent) 

Tudalen y pecyn 42



 

WALES SOCIAL PARTNERS UNIT EVALUATION 

Service Review: Facilitating Social Partners' Engagement with the 
Welsh Government 

 
 

24 

 

 

The WSPU is also contracted to assist the secretariat of Commerce Cymru (formerly 

Business Wales) and support its operation. Representatives from the WSPU outlined that 

the organisation provides the full secretariat function for Commerce Cymru, arranging the 

meetings, taking minutes, arranging for speakers, and working in close consultation with the 

Chair. The WSPU noted that it also co-ordinates Commerce Cymru input to meetings of the 

Committee for Economic Renewal Working Group, working with Welsh Government 

representatives in agreeing agendas and that social partners produce papers when required. 
 

3.1.4 Management and accountability 

 

The way in which the WSPU’s contractual requirements are delivered and managed was 

also considered as part of this evaluation. Social Partners who responded to the survey 

outlined high levels of satisfaction with delivery arrangements with 87 per cent ‘strongly 

agreeing’ or ‘agreeing’ that the services currently provided by the WSPU are the most 

effective way of supporting social partner engagement in Wales (see Annexe 1, figure 6).  

Interviews with the WSPU staff outlined that they plan their work based on the needs of the 

Social Partners and their contractual role in implementing the Welsh Government’s Business 

Scheme. The WSPU noted that its team had developed expertise over successive contract 

periods;  the team’s knowledge and skills were endorsed by Social Partner survey 

respondents and interviewees and by several Welsh Government officials.  

WSPU staff outlined that they believed there to be effective internal planning processes to 

guide their work and underlined the importance of the role of WSPU’s Board of Directors in 

ensuring accountability and monitoring quality control. WSPU’s Board of Directors consists 

of representatives from Social Partner organisations, several of whom have been board 

members for up to 10 years.  Social Partners therefore have ownership of the organisation 

and they are responsible for overseeing the management of the Unit’s work.  

Both Board Members and the WSPU staff noted the good communication and feedback 

structures in place to support regular Board Meetings and monitoring systems. The WSPU 

staff also reported that progress meetings with the contract team at the Welsh Government 

had increased in frequency over the last contract period, thereby enhancing accountability to 

the client.  

3.2 Views of Welsh Government officials 

 

Welsh Government officials were asked for their views on the effectiveness and value of 

WSPU’s services. Officials who were aware of the services delivered by the WSPU 

considered them to be important and recognised the potential benefits to both Social 

Partners and Welsh Government policy leads.   

 

Those with less knowledge and awareness also felt that, in principle, there was a case for 

supporting engagement with Social Partners. They recognised that compiling, distilling and 

disseminating information to organisations in a systematic way can deliver efficiencies and 

Tudalen y pecyn 43



 

WALES SOCIAL PARTNERS UNIT EVALUATION 

Service Review: Facilitating Social Partners' Engagement with the 
Welsh Government 

 
 

25 

 

can help ensure coordinated engagement between the Welsh Government and Social 

Partners.  

 

Officials also saw the value of the services the WSPU currently provide in terms of bringing 

Social Partners together and encouraging them, where opportunities allow, to speak with a 

coherent voice.  As one official commented, “otherwise social partners might face 

uncoordinated and ill-targeted engagement.” It was also acknowledged by one official that 

the WSPU provides a more level playing field for smaller representative bodies. While they 

outlined that the “door was always open” to these organisations they accepted that their lack 

of resources meant that the WSPU was currently a better channel of engagement for them. 

 

Several officials did note, however, that they already have well-established links with Social 

Partners and that they often liaise directly with them. These interviewees were therefore 

keen to emphasise that the services the WSPU provides has enhanced rather than replaced 

the relationships they have with representative bodies such as the CBI, Wales TUC, FSB 

Cymru and the IoD. For example one official noted, as part of his work leading on 

entrepreneurship and business support, that he already has direct links with business 

representatives. 

 

“I already work with business organisations, why do I need and intermediary between 

me and intermediary bodies? I‟m not clear how it (the WSPU) would add value to my 

job.”  (Welsh Government official) 

 

As outlined in Section 2.2 of this report, the research found relatively low levels of 

awareness levels regarding current services provided by the WSPU amongst Welsh 

Government officials.  However, one official noted that the summaries of Assembly business 

are also useful “internally for officials across departments”. Given the range of activity taking 

place across the institution, one individual noted that the summaries: 

  

“help me understand what is going on across different Welsh Government 

departments and enables me to make links to my areas of work.   As the Welsh 

Government covers such a wide range of policy areas, having a resource that helps 

raise awareness across departments is very useful.” (Welsh Government official) 

 

The individual conceded, however, that they were arguably not the intended target audience 

for WSPU’s summaries. This does, nevertheless, illustrate the potential for the information 

and research services currently supplied by the WSPU to be retargeted where appropriate, 

and where resources permit, to meet the needs of the Welsh Government.  

 

Welsh Government officials who felt in a position to comment on the value and effectiveness 

of services endorsed the view of Social Partners that the WSPU provides a good information 

service to organisations. Some however questioned to what extent the capacity of Social 

Partners to engage with the Welsh Government had been raised.   

 

Officials acknowledged that, as the balance of services delivered by WSPU currently stands, 

Social Partners are more likely than Welsh Government departments to see the benefits of 

WSPU’s activity. Indeed, several officials questioned whether the model of delivery is 

working as well as it could in terms of providing benefits for individual Welsh Government 

departments and across the administration as a whole. 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 44



 

WALES SOCIAL PARTNERS UNIT EVALUATION 

Service Review: Facilitating Social Partners' Engagement with the 
Welsh Government 

 
 

26 

 

 

3.2.1 Summary conclusions from this section  

 

 
- There are high levels of satisfaction among Social Partners who contributed to this 

evaluation regarding the value of the services currently provided by the WSPU;  

 

- Almost all Social Partners agree that the WSPU provides an impartial and 

comprehensive research service;  the Unit is seen as a trusted and authoritative 

source of information;  

 

- The services currently provided by the WSPU have contributed to providing 

additional capacity for Social Partners, particularly the smaller organisations, to 

operate and engage more effectively; 

 

- Social Partners consider that the WSPU has contributed to better engagement 

between Social Partners and the National Assembly and Welsh Government by 

acting as an interface between them; 

 

- The WSPU has also served as a vehicle to bring diverse organisations together, 

establishing common ground, and contributing to developing a united voice for the 

Social Partners on some issues;  

 

- Social Partners consider the impartiality and independence of the WSPU to be 

crucial; 

 

- Effective management structures have been put in place by the WSPU and the 

Board of Directors ensures accountability and transparency;  

 

- The evaluation found a range of opinion among Welsh Government officials on the 

value and effectiveness of the services delivered as part of the contract let by the 

Welsh Government:  broadly speaking, there was a recognition of the value of 

services but that more work needs to be done to ensure that the benefits are 

enjoyed by Welsh Government departments as well as by Social Partners.   

 

Tudalen y pecyn 45



 

WALES SOCIAL PARTNERS UNIT EVALUATION 

Service Review: Facilitating Social Partners' Engagement with the 
Welsh Government 

 
 

27 

 

4 The WSPU’s performance against contractual 
requirements 

 

 
This section of the report examines the extent to which the WSPU has met the aims and 

objectives of the contract as well as assessing the cost effectiveness of their services and 

whether the service is valued by both Social Partners and the Welsh Government.  

4.1 The extent to which the WSPU has met the aims and objectives of the 

contract 

 
From the evidence collected from Social Partners and Welsh Government officials the 

WSPU can been seen to have successfully met the aims and objectives of its contract with 

the Welsh Government. The WSPU has provided a monitoring and information service over 

the past three years which is considered by Social Partners to be of high quality and of real 

relevance to their needs, and which has contributed to adding to their capacity to engage 

with the Welsh Government.  

The WSPU has met its contractual requirements in terms of the quality and range of its 

information and monitoring services. These services have been delivered on a regular basis, 

and cover a wide range of policy issues. The WSPU has provided briefings and news as well 

as summarising consultation documents through email, its website and Twitter. Evidence 

shows that these services have given partners the capacity to ‘determine quickly and easily 

whether or not they wish to respond’, and promoted engagement with a wide range of Welsh 

Government policies and initiatives. 

The WSPU’s provision of tailored research upon request has allowed for further clarification 

and advice for the Social Partners, allowing them to successfully engage with policy 

development and Welsh Government consultations. The WSPU’s provision of these services 

in easy to access formats has allowed the further dissemination of information, leading to 

wider engagement. The services provided by the WSPU have therefore contributed to the 

maintenance and development of the network of Social Partners allowing all voices and 

sectors to be heard – both within the network and in terms of engagement with the Welsh 

Government  

The services currently provided by the WSPU have also contributed to delivering additional 

capacity for Social Partners, particularly the smaller organisations, to operate and engage 

more effectively. Social Partners consider that the WSPU has contributed to better 

engagement between Social Partners and the Welsh Government by acting as an interface 

between them. The WSPU has also served as a vehicle to bring diverse organisations 

together, establishing common ground, and contributing to developing a united voice for the 

Social Partners on some issues. 

Part of this process of establishing common ground has been through the WSPU’s effective 

delivery of its expected additional roles, namely supporting the operation of Business Wales; 

acting a secretariat for Commerce Cymru; assisting the secretariat of the Council for 

Economic Renewal (formerly Business Partnership Council); and acting as a liaison point for 

Tudalen y pecyn 46



 

WALES SOCIAL PARTNERS UNIT EVALUATION 

Service Review: Facilitating Social Partners' Engagement with the 
Welsh Government 

 
 

28 

 

WEFO. These roles illustrate additional activities that support and complement the primary 

services currently delivered by the WSPU. The links to the Council for Economic Renewal 

offer particular potential to build on existing services and enhance Social Partner-Welsh 

Government engagement. This is further explored in the ‘future services’ section of this 

report. 

The WSPU has also succeeded in maintaining a position of objectivity and independence. 

Almost all Social Partners agree that the WSPU provides an impartial and comprehensive 

research service and the Unit is seen as a trusted and authoritative source of information. 

Welsh Government officials also recognised the value of this impartiality. Evidence suggests 

that this independence has allowed the WSPU to operate effectively with a wide range of 

partner organisations, thereby assisting in the development and maintenance of the Social 

Partner network.  

4.2 The cost effectiveness of the WSPU’s services 

 
Evidence suggests that the WSPU delivers the requirements of its contract with the Welsh 

Assembly Government to a high quality. In terms of the cost effectiveness of the services the 

evaluation has found that effective management structures have been put in place by the 

WSPU and that its Board of Directors ensures accountability and transparency.  

The nature of the services provided by the WSPU are more factual and targeted providing 

information and continuity, and have a specifically Welsh focus. They thus complement 

rather than duplicate activities undertaken by similar organisations or the Welsh 

Government. There is evidence to suggest that the continuity of personnel at the Unit has 

brought about added value as a result of well-established working relationships, contributing 

further to the cost effectiveness of the current model.  

Without sufficient benchmarking data or comparable services across other UK countries it is 

not possible to provide a firm conclusion as the value for money provided by the current 

services delivered by the WSPU. However it is clear that the services are valued by the 

Social Partners who responded to the evaluation and that the WSPU has successfully 

delivered on the aims and objectives of the contract on budget. This therefore can be seen 

to be a cost effective approach and one that has provided additional value as evidenced by 

the conclusions above and the experiences of customer organisations outlined below.  

4.3 The experiences of customer organisations in their dealings with the 

WSPU 

 
There are high levels of satisfaction among Social Partners who contributed to this 

evaluation regarding the value of the services currently provided by the WSPU. The majority 

of Social Partners also considered that the current delivery model for services was the most 

effective way of ensuring ongoing engagement. The Welsh focus of the services provided by 

the WSPU; their impartiality and independence; and the level of trust developed across the 

network as a result of their provision were considered to have provided additional capacity 

and engagement opportunities for the Social Partners. 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 47



 

WALES SOCIAL PARTNERS UNIT EVALUATION 

Service Review: Facilitating Social Partners' Engagement with the 
Welsh Government 

 
 

29 

 

The majority of Social Partners consider therefore that the WSPU has contributed to better 

engagement between Social Partners and the Welsh Government by acting as an interface 

between them. For Welsh Government officials, however, more focus was needed in regards 

of this facilitating role to ensure that the Welsh Government also sees the benefit of services. 

While these has been delivered according to the contractual terms on a request basis, a 

more proactive role from the WSPU or another organisation delivering these services in 

future would be beneficial. 

The high value placed on the services by the Social Partners and the potential for 

rebalancing the services to improve engagement with the Welsh Government suggest that 

there is a rationale for continuing the services. A refreshed Business Scheme plus a contract 

focused on proactive engagement with the Welsh Government as well as continued high 

quality services to the Social Partners will be key to maintaining the value and effectiveness 

of this engagement.  

As one contributor to the evaluation pointed out, the value of the WSPU, or any other 

organisation delivering similar services in the future, will only be met if there is a strong and 

sustained commitment to engagement from both the Welsh Government and the Social 

Partners. The foundations have been laid by recent contracts and services delivered by the 

WSPU and evidence suggests there is a further opportunity and will from both sides to build 

on this progress. The next section of the report considers future priorities to support this 

process. 

 

4.3.1 Summary conclusions from this section  

 

 

- Evidence collected during this evaluation indicates that the WSPU has 

successfully met the aims and objectives of its contract with the Welsh 

Government. The WSPU’s monitoring and information service is of high quality 

and of relevance to the needs of Social Partners. It has supported Social Partners 

in their efforts to engage with the Welsh Government.  

 

- In view of the lack of directly comparable services, it is difficult to carry out a value 

for money assessment of the services provided by the WSPU.  However the model 

currently delivered is seen by service users as being cost effective, delivering 

added value to Social Partners.  

 

- The WSPU has contributed to better engagement between Social Partners and the 

Welsh Government.  

 

- Based on the evidence presented as part of the evaluation, there is a strong 

argument for the continuation of the services provided by the WSPU (see future 

services, below). 

 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 48



 

WALES SOCIAL PARTNERS UNIT EVALUATION 

Service Review: Facilitating Social Partners' Engagement with the 
Welsh Government 

 
 

30 

 

5 Future services 
 

This section summarises Social Partner and Welsh Government officials’ views on the 

priorities in terms of supporting Social Partner engagement over the short and medium term 

future. This section also presents an initial discussion of other potential methods of 

delivering the services currently delivered by the WSPU and the implications of re-prioritising 

or discontinuing certain activities and services.  

 

5.1 Views of WSPU members and Social Partners 

 

There is very strong support amongst Social Partners for the continuation of dedicated 

services of the type currently funded by the Welsh Government and delivered by the WSPU 

to support engagement. The majority of survey respondents also considered that the current 

type of services are the most effective way of continuing to support engagement between 

Social Partners and the Welsh Government.    

 

In summary, survey data (Annexe 1, figures 6 and 7) reveals that:  

 

 36 out of 38 respondents (95 per cent) ‘strongly agree’ or ‘agree’ that there is a 

continued need for dedicated services to support social partner engagement in 

Wales; 2 respondents neither agree nor disagree.  

 

 33 out of 38 respondents (87 per cent) ‘strongly agree’ or ‘agree’ that the services 

currently provided by the WSPU are the most effective way of supporting social 

partner engagement in Wales; 5 respondents (13 per cent) neither agree nor 

disagree.  

 

 17 out of 37 respondents (46 per cent) consider that the services provided to support 

social partner engagement in Wales could not be provided more effectively in 

another way. A further 17 (46 per cent) neither agree nor disagree with this 

statement, while 3 respondents agree.  

 

 Of the services currently provided by the WSPU, discontinuing the weekly monitoring 

and information service would have most negative impact on Social Partners.  

Survey respondents and interviewees commented that discontinuing the services currently 

provided by the WSPU would be likely to reduce Social Partners’ current levels of 

engagement with the Welsh Government. Many respondents felt that discontinuing the 

services would also remove the added time and resource capacity individuals and 

organisations gain through the services the WSPU currently provides.  

 

“The loss of these services would mean I would need to spend a considerable 

amount of time looking for this information myself which would have a severely 

detrimental impact on the amount of time I have available for other areas of my work. 

Individuals in other organisations would do the same leading to a massive duplication 

of effort and reduced capability across organisations.”  (Social Partner interviewee) 

Tudalen y pecyn 49



 

WALES SOCIAL PARTNERS UNIT EVALUATION 

Service Review: Facilitating Social Partners' Engagement with the 
Welsh Government 

 
 

31 

 

 

It was also considered that the discontinuation of services could result in a more disjointed 

relationship between Social Partners, their affiliated organisations and the Welsh 

Government. Several interviewees considered that the levels of trust that have been built up 

between Social Partners themselves, and the Welsh Government, could potentially 

disappear. For them, this has been an additional example of the value developed through 

the engagement process.  

 

 “Without this information and these services, I have no doubt that our interaction with 

Government and the Assembly would substantially reduce and this would impact on 

the Government's own consultation and face-to-face interaction with organisations.” 

(Social Partner survey respondent) 

 

In terms of potential future options for delivering these services several Social Partner 

survey respondents outlined the Welsh Government could deliver elements of the service in-

house. However, these individuals considered that this process was unlikely to make the 

service any better or more efficient than it already is.  

 

Some interviewees additionally noted that Social Partners could pay for the WSPU services 

(or similar) however they questioned how many organisations would be prepared to do so. It 

was also questioned whether all Social Partners would access information through the same 

provider if the WSPU or a similar intermediary organisation did not exist.   

 

“As the Welsh Government is under a legal obligation to deliver this engagement I 

think that the WSPU is one of the few solid, practical embodiments of that obligation.” 

(Social Partner interviewee)  

 

“WSPU plays an important role in supporting social partner engagement with Welsh 

Government but the quality of this work is dictated to an extent by the commitment of 

Welsh Government departments. Some areas of government are better than others 

at engaging so it follows that the WSPU service would be enhanced greatly by a 

more joined-up and consistent system of engagement from the Welsh Government.” 

(Social Partner survey respondent) 
 

Interviewees working for UK or international organisations noted that, as far as they were 

aware there is no equivalent service in Northern Ireland, Scotland or England.  

Several organisations noted that they have contracts with Dodd’s Monitoring, Graylings and 

We Work with You to source information services. They explained that these have more of a 

UK focus and that the services currently provided by the WSPU were focused almost entirely 

on the Welsh policy context and therefore much more relevant to their needs.  

 

“WSPU gives us a much more Welsh focus and an understanding of the Welsh mind-

set which is crucial when identifying relevant information and advice.” (Social 

Partner) 

 

 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 50



 

WALES SOCIAL PARTNERS UNIT EVALUATION 

Service Review: Facilitating Social Partners' Engagement with the 
Welsh Government 

 
 

32 

 

5.2 Views of Welsh Government officials 

 

The Welsh Government officials interviewed by the evaluation team emphasised that 

continued and improved engagement with Social Partners is crucial.  It was recognised that 

while Social Partner engagement had not been a clear priority for all departments in the 

early years of devolution, there is now a need for all senior officials to ensure that there are 

systems in place to ensure the voices and views of business and trades unions are heard. 

One official summarised by saying: 

 

“The Welsh Government as a whole needs to understand the opportunities and 

barriers to success and to take informed decisions regarding policy development that 

takes account of the needs of business.” (Welsh Government official)  

 

It was suggested that there is scope in future for the more proactive departments (in terms of 

their links with Social Partners) to assist departments in helping to liaise with external 

organisations. There is also a potential role for the WSPU (or an organisation contracted to 

deliver similar services in the future) to help identify and disseminate effective practice in 

Social Partner engagement.  

 

Relatively little comment was made by Welsh Government officials on alternative models of 

delivering the services currently provided by the WSPU.  This was due, in part, to a limited 

knowledge on the part of many of current contractual and working arrangements. The option 

of taking some services in-house was mentioned by one official, with departmental 

Stakeholder Engagement Teams offering a possible substitute model.   

 

Alternatively, it was suggested that services could be contracted out separately, split 

between information services and more targeted capacity building and engagement 

activities.  On balance, civil servants tended to express a similar view as Social Partners by 

noting that the WSPU’s independence from Welsh Government probably gave it “credibility 

and trustworthiness” with one noting that a partnership which represented a variety of Social 

Partner organisations was “valuable and an important network in its own right”.  

 

Discussions with a number of officials did touch on ways in which future services to promote 

Social Partner engagement could be more strategically focused; some Welsh Government 

officials felt strongly that the focus should be now be placed on providing additional capacity 

to organisations to engage with departments as part of the process of developing policy and 

designing programmes.   

 

“There is still progress to be made to deliver more value for the Welsh Government 

[from these services]. At the heart of this is the role of WSPU and its potential value 

to Welsh Government officials and departments. This needs to be communicated far 

better and there should be better working protocols and the WSPU to take a more 

proactive approach – observing, analysing and facilitating rather than simple 

monitoring.” (Welsh Government official) 

 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 51



 

WALES SOCIAL PARTNERS UNIT EVALUATION 

Service Review: Facilitating Social Partners' Engagement with the 
Welsh Government 

 
 

33 

 

5.3 Potential changes to services 

 

Both Social Partners and Welsh Government are therefore in agreement regarding the 

importance of continued services to promote engagement. There was also general 

agreement amongst those interviewed and surveyed that the independence and impartiality 

of these services is a paramount. As outlined in the previous section there were few 

concrete suggestions regarding potential changes to services provided by either the Social 

Partners or Welsh Government officials. Nevertheless it is possible to outline several 

potential future options to sustain and enhance the services currently provided by the 

WSPU. 

 

 

 Maintaining and enhancing the core elements of the information service. For 

Social Partners this is the most valued element of the current services. It was 

suggested by both Welsh Government officials and Social Partners that a first stage 

in the process of building capacity is ensuring that organisations have access to 

information about developments in key policy areas. Both parties also considered 

that a renewed focus on early engagement regarding policy development could form 

part of these services. The timing and focus for disseminating this information is 

therefore crucial, ensuring that Social Partners are able to make a meaningful 

contribution at a sufficiently early stage and allowing the Welsh Government to be 

fully aware of Social Partner views. Social Partners reported to being very satisfied 

by the quality and timeliness of the services currently provided by the WSPU; 

however for future contracts there is also potential to ensure that these services 

promote a more proactive, two way process of engagement between the Social 

Partners and the Welsh Government.   

 

 The Review of the Business Scheme recommended that “the Council for Economic 

Renewal meetings should be focused on issues requiring decision-making and 

action.  Representation at the Council for Economic Renewal and Working Group 

should be reviewed… and more provision made for sub-group meetings covering 

specific topics for discussion or information.”  It would seem sensible for the WSPU, 

or any other organisation delivering the services, to build on its existing functions and 

to play a lead role in supporting more focused meetings of the CER.  This could 

involve preparing and disseminating research papers / briefings linked to issues 

under discussion at full meetings or sub-group meetings.  This would provide an 

opportunity to draw on the expertise of WSPU staff.  In so doing, WSPU or any future 

service provider could take a more active role in supporting Social Partners to 

prepare for CER meetings, working with members to ensure the most appropriate 

and informed representatives attend. This process would also link to the calls from 

several Social Partners and Welsh Government officials who considered there to be 

room for improvement in terms of using the Council for Economic Renewal as a 

vehicle for Welsh Government-Social Partner engagement.  

 

Tudalen y pecyn 52



 

WALES SOCIAL PARTNERS UNIT EVALUATION 

Service Review: Facilitating Social Partners' Engagement with the 
Welsh Government 

 
 

34 

 

 This also mirrors the calls from some Social Partners for more targeted and 

strategically-focused research support services. There are resource (time) 

implications for staff associated with this.  While 25 out of 36 survey respondents (69 

per cent) were satisfied with the current level of service provided by WSPU some 

respondents indicated there were additional areas of information and support that 

WSPU could provide. These included: collating and circulating business organisation 

events; a directory of civil servants; delivery of in-depth industry research on various 

topics; training for staff about the work/powers of the National Assembly and Welsh 

Government; and arranging joint meetings with individual ministers .Further 

discussion would be required to determine the anticipated level of resource required 

to deliver this service, what impact it would have on the current suite of information 

services delivered, and what would be the potential benefits of these additional 

services for the overall engagement process.   

 

 The Welsh Government views that the services are required to be tailored more 

towards the needs and services of the Welsh Government. One suggestion to 

develop this was the formulation of guidance / case studies for Welsh 

Government on how to engage effectively with Social Partners, including an 

outline of the role and potential contribution that the WSPU or another future funded 

organisation can make in different scenarios and situations. This is likely to be a ‘task 

and finish’ exercise to establish some principles and practical actions that officials 

can take in seeking to enhance engagement. It was also suggested that a shift in 

emphasis may be required in order to ensure that the benefits of the services 

currently provided by the WSPU are distributed more equally between the Social 

Partners and the Welsh Government in terms of promoting engagement. This could 

involve future contracts requiring a more proactive and targeted approach to 

engagement from service providers with built in monitoring processes to reflect 

progress. There was an acknowledgement that the Welsh Government has a key 

role to play in this process and in making clear its own expectations and 

requirements as part of the next contractual agreement from 2014 onwards. One of 

the issues to be resolved as a matter of priority is achieving a shared vision of 

‘capacity building’ in the context of Social Partner engagement.  How should the skills 

and competence of Social Partners be supported and what specific activities or 

services are required to facilitate this?    

 

5.3.1 Summary conclusions from this section  

 

 
- An overwhelming majority of Social Partners who responded to the evaluation 

consider that there is a continued need for dedicated services to support social 

partner engagement in Wales; they report that discontinuing the services delivered 

by the WSPU would have a negative impact on their levels of engagement with the 

Tudalen y pecyn 53



 

WALES SOCIAL PARTNERS UNIT EVALUATION 

Service Review: Facilitating Social Partners' Engagement with the 
Welsh Government 

 
 

35 

 

National Assembly and Welsh Government.  

 

- The majority of Social Partners also considered that the current delivery model for 

services was the most effective way of ensuring ongoing engagement. The Welsh 

focus of the services, their impartiality and independence, and the level of trust 

developed across the network as a result of their provision were considered to 

have demonstrated additional value for the Social Partners. 

 

- Welsh Government officials also supported the need for services to promote Social 

Partner engagement. Some officials take the view that the services delivered 

under the contract by the Welsh Government could place a greater emphasis on 

building capacity among Social Partners to engage with the Welsh Government. 

This could potentially entail a shift in emphasis to more tailored and strategic work 

with Social Partners, including by providing more targeted support to Social 

Partners in planning and preparation for CER meetings.  

 

- Both Social Partners and Welsh Government officials considered that there was 

scope for either additional services to be provided or for a rebalancing of these 

services. The proposals for future services or activities enclosed in this section 

could therefore be used as a basis for further discussion in the context of the wider 

evidence base presented in this report.  

 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 54



 

WALES SOCIAL PARTNERS UNIT EVALUATION 

Service Review: Facilitating Social Partners' Engagement with the 
Welsh Government 

 
 

36 

 

6 Recommendations 
 
 

Recommendation 1:  An overwhelming majority of Social Partners who responded to the 

evaluation consider that there is a continued need for dedicated services to support social 

partner engagement in Wales. Evidence suggests high levels of satisfaction and that the 

WSPU has met its contractual requirements, indicating that the services delivered are well 

developed, effective and highly valued by Social Partners. These services should therefore 

continue to be funded by the Welsh Government and delivered in support of the Business 

Scheme.  

 
Recommendation 2:  Evidence suggests that there is a case for the Welsh Government to 

review the overall profile and delivery of services provided in order to both ensure Social 

Partners and its own departments and officials benefit further from these services.  This will 

ensure that they balance the need to support the capacity of Social Partners to engage 

effectively with the Welsh Government while ensuring added value for Welsh Government 

officials.  

 
Recommendation 3:  Future service contracts should therefore place greater emphasis on 

a more proactive and targeted approach to engagement from service providers. This should 

include regular meetings between the Welsh Government and any future service provider 

and agreed monitoring processes to reflect progress. The Welsh Government has a key role 

to play in this by making clear its own expectations and requirements as part of the next 

contractual agreement from 2014 onwards. 

 
Recommendation 4:  In reviewing the services, there is a particular need to take account of 

the perceived value of the core information services (notably the weekly summaries of 

Assembly business) and the resources required to deliver these services which provide a 

crucial initial point of information for many Social Partners, particularly smaller organisations. 

 
Recommendation 5:  Early engagement is seen as paramount for both Social Partners and 

Welsh Government officials who contributed to the review. Future service providers could 

therefore place a greater emphasis on building capacity among Social Partners towards 

early engagement with the Welsh Government. This could potentially entail a shift in 

emphasis to more tailored and strategic work with Social Partners, including by providing 

more targeted support to Social Partners in planning and preparation for CER meetings 

 
Recommendation 6:  Evidence underlines a specific need to raise awareness of the WSPU 

and the services it provides across Welsh Government departments. While actions are 

already underway to formalise links between departments and Social Partners, the WSPU or 

any future service provider should consider what additional proactive steps it can take to 

raise its profile. This could include developing guidance or good practice case studies in 

Social Partner engagement. The Welsh Government should also play a key role in this 

process, supporting any future service provider to engage effectively across Welsh 

Government departments and ensuring senior level support for such engagement. 

 
Recommendation 7: As the WSPU staff continue to establish contacts with Welsh 

Government officials across departments, discussions should focus on the type of services 

and practical support any future service provider can offer Welsh Government officials. This 

Tudalen y pecyn 55



 

WALES SOCIAL PARTNERS UNIT EVALUATION 

Service Review: Facilitating Social Partners' Engagement with the 
Welsh Government 

 
 

37 

 

will contribute to ensuring that the service provider is used as an effective engagement 

mechanism, as recommended in the Review of the Business Scheme. 
 

Recommendation 8:  Evidence suggests that Social Partners value the WSPU’s impartiality 

and the fact that the services focus specifically on Welsh policy and programmes. Any 

similar future services to support Social Partner engagement should therefore remain 

independent of the Welsh Government and focus on the needs of the Social Partners in 

Wales.  
 

Recommendation 9: Following on from the recommendation in the Review of the Business 

Scheme, any future service provider should use its expertise and networks to play a lead 

role in supporting more focused meetings of the Council for Economic Renewal. The Welsh 

Government should facilitate this by working with any future service provider to clarify roles 

and functions in facilitating more focused discussions through the CER.   

 
Recommendation 10:  While the WSPU may be a recognisable brand for the organisations 

it has served for over a decade, its identity and profile still need to be raised among a 

number of key Welsh Government partners. Looking ahead, future service providers may 

wish to consider whether a rebranding of the services is necessary to achieve this.  
 

Recommendation 11:  Any significant changes proposed to the services provided by any 

future service provider should be accompanied by a detailed assessment of current 

resources. This assessment should ensure that there is enough capacity and suitable skills 

within a staff team to be able to deliver services to the highest quality. 
 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 56



 

WALES SOCIAL PARTNERS UNIT EVALUATION 

Service Review: Facilitating Social Partners' Engagement with the 
Welsh Government 

 
 

38 

 

Annexe 1: Figures 
 

Figure 1: Are you aware that the WSPU has the following aims and objectives? 

 
 

 

Figure 2: Which of the following WSPU services and products do you use? 

 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

Facilitate the
interface between
the Social Partners

and the Welsh
Government

Provide an impartial
and comprehensive

research and
evaluation service

to the Social
Partners

Operate effectively
with a wide range of

partner
organisations

Assist in the
development and

maintenance of the
Social Partner

network.

Number of  
Respondents 

Yes

No

Not sure

0 5 10 15 20 25 30 35

Weekly summaries of Forthcoming
National Assembly Business

E-mail (relating to Welsh Government,
National Assembly for Wales, Wales Office

and WEFO activities)

Twitter Information Stream (relating to
Welsh Government, National Assembly for
Wales, Wales Office and WEFO activities)

E-mailed Targeted National Assembly for
Wales (NAW) Committee excerpts

Client specific information and advice

Website

Number of respondents 

Never

Rarely

Occasionally

Frequently

Tudalen y pecyn 57



 

WALES SOCIAL PARTNERS UNIT EVALUATION 

Service Review: Facilitating Social Partners' Engagement with the 
Welsh Government 

 
 

39 

 

 

Figure 3: How beneficial do you consider the following to be? 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

0 5 10 15 20 25 30 35

Weekly summaries of Forthcoming
National Assembly Business

E-mail (relating to Welsh Government,
National Assembly for Wales, Wales

Office and WEFO activities)

Twitter Information Stream (relating
to Welsh Government, National

Assembly for Wales, Wales Office and
WEFO activities)

E-mailed Targeted National Assembly
for Wales (NAW) Committee excerpts

Client specific information and advice

Website

Number of respondents 

N/a - have not
used this service

Of little or no
benefit

Beneficial at
times

Very beneficial

Tudalen y pecyn 58



 

WALES SOCIAL PARTNERS UNIT EVALUATION 

Service Review: Facilitating Social Partners' Engagement with the 
Welsh Government 

 
 

40 

 

 

Figure 4: To what extent do you agree or disagree with these statements:    The 

services provided by the WSPU...... 

 
 

 

Figure 5: To what extent do you agree or disagree with the following statements: 

 

0 5 10 15 20 25

have enabled my organisation to be
better informed of Welsh Government

policy development processes.

add time and resource capacity to my
organisation.

allow my organisation to better serve
our members and stakeholders.

have contributed to better
engagement between social partners

and the political process.

inform my organisation's internal
strategic planning.

Number of respondents 

Strongly
disagree

Disagree

Neither agree
nor disagree

Agree

Strongly
agree

0

5

10

15

20

25

The services
provided by the
WSPU meet the

needs of my
organisation.

The WSPU staff
respond to

requests for
information
quickly and
efficiently.

The services
provided by the
WSPU are of a

consistently high
quality.

The WSPU is a
trusted and

authoritative
source of

information.

Number of 
respondents 

Strongly agree

Agree

Neither agree nor
disagree

Disagree

Strongly disagree

Tudalen y pecyn 59



 

WALES SOCIAL PARTNERS UNIT EVALUATION 

Service Review: Facilitating Social Partners' Engagement with the 
Welsh Government 

 
 

41 

 

Figure 6: To what extent do you agree or disagree with the following statements: 

 
 

 

 

Figure 7: What impact would discontinuing the following services currently provided by 

WSPU have on your organisation? 

 

0 5 10 15 20 25 30

There is a continued need for dedicated
services to support social partner

engagement in Wales

The services currently provided by the
WSPU are the most effective way of

supporting social partner engagement
in Wales

Services to support social partner
engagement in Wales could be more
effectively provided in another way.

The services currently provided by the
WSPU complement other forms of

engagement between social partners
and Welsh Government.

The services currently provided by
WSPU are easy to access.

Number of respondents 

Strongly
disagree

Disagree

Neither
agree nor
disagree

Agree

Strongly
agree

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

Monitoring and
information service

Summaries of policy
documents

Advice services

Number of 
respondents 

Positive impact

No impact

Negative impact

Not sure

Tudalen y pecyn 60



 

 

Bae Caerdydd 

Cardiff Bay 

CF99 1NA 

Clerc/Clerk: Steve George, Ffôn/Tel: 029 2089 8242  

E-bost / E-mail: craffuPW@cymru.gov.uk     

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Y Pwyllgor Craffu ar Waith y Prif Weinidog 

Committee for the Scrutiny of the First Minister 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

  

 

 

 

 

Annwyl Brif Weinidog  

 

Cydberthynas Llywodraeth Cymru â'r Trydydd Sector a'r Sector Preifat 

 

Diolch i chi am eich llythyr dyddiedig 18 Rhagfyr yn rhoi gwybodaeth 

ychwanegol am faterion a godwyd gan Aelodau'r Pwyllgor Craffu ar Waith y 

Prif Weinidog yn y cyfarfod a gynhaliwyd ar 20 Tachwedd.   

 

Canolbwyntiodd ein sesiwn graffu ar gydberthynas y Llywodraeth â'r Trydydd 

Sector a'r Sector Preifat. Mae'r Pwyllgor yn diolch i chi ac i'ch swyddogion am 

ymddangos ger ei fron ac am ymateb i'n cwestiynau, yn enwedig y rhai a 

 

Carwyn Jones AC 

Y Prif Weinidog  

Llywodraeth Cymru 

 

  7 Mawrth 2014 

Tudalen y pecyn 61



2 

 

gafodd eu cyflwyno trwy’r cyfryngau cymdeithasol gan aelodau o'r cyhoedd. 

Gobeithio eich bod yn cytuno bod y math hwn o ymgysylltu yn werth chweil 

ac y dylai barhau. 

 

Y Trydydd Sector 

 

Mae'r Pwyllgor yn llwyr gefnogi cyfraniad y sector gwirfoddol o ran helpu i 

ddatblygu a gweithredu ymrwymiadau'r Llywodraeth a gwasanaethau 

cyhoeddus yn gyffredinol.  Mae hyn yn arbennig o bwysig pan fo adnoddau'r 

Llywodraeth o dan bwysau sylweddol.   

 

Yn eich papur i'r Pwyllgor cyn ein cyfarfod, amlinellwyd newid o ran cyfeiriad 

strategol, gyda mwy o ffocws ar ganlyniadau, yn enwedig canlyniadau sy'n 

flaenoriaethau i Lywodraeth Cymru. 

 

"21. Y prif newid mewn cyfeiriad strategol yw ei gwneud yn glir er bod 

Llywodraeth Cymru yn gwerthfawrogi'r Trydydd Sector oherwydd y 

cyfraniad y gall ei wneud i les economaidd, cymdeithasol ac 

amgylcheddol tymor hir Cymru, ei phobl a'i chymunedau, mae angen 

i'r ffocws symud at y canlyniadau y gallai'r sector helpu i'w cyflawni. 

Dylai Trydydd Sector cryf gyfrannu at les tymor hir o'i ran ei hun, ond 

dylai hefyd fod yn gallu dangos sut mae'n cyfrannu at y canlyniadau y 

mae Llywodraeth Cymru wedi eu nodi fel blaenoriaethau."  

 

Hysbyswyd y Pwyllgor am nifer o fentrau'r Llywodraeth a oedd â'r nod o 

gyflawni’r newid hwnnw i’r ffocws strategol ac a allai gael effaith sylweddol 

ar y sector gwirfoddol yn arbennig.  Maent yn cynnwys: 

 

 Newidiadau i'r trefniadau cyllido ar gyfer sefydliadau 'seilwaith' megis 

Cyngor Gweithredu Gwirfoddol Cymru (CGGC), Cynghorau Gwirfoddol 

Sirol (CGS) a chanolfannau gwirfoddoli; 

Tudalen y pecyn 62



3 

 

 Trefniadau seilwaith rhanbarthol newydd ar gyfer y trydydd sector fel y 

bydd elusennau mwy yn ymgysylltu'n uniongyrchol â Llywodraeth 

Cymru yn hytrach na thrwy gyrff ymbarél; 

 Canllawiau manwl ar gompactau lleol, i'w datblygu yn 2014 (er na fydd 

deddfwriaeth i wneud y compactau hyn yn statudol yn mynd rhagddi); 

 Y cod ymarfer diwygiedig ar gyfer ariannu'r trydydd sector, sy'n 

cynnwys set fwy datblygedig o egwyddorion, gan gynnwys rhai ar gyfer 

monitro a gwneud cwynion; 

 Newidiadau sylweddol i Gyngor Partneriaeth y Trydydd Sector; 

 Adolygiad o'r modd y mae Llywodraeth Cymru yn cefnogi gwirfoddoli. 

 

Nid yw'r Pwyllgor yn gwrthwynebu mewn egwyddor dim un o'r newidiadau 

hyn yn unigol.  Fodd bynnag, roedd Aelodau'r Pwyllgor yn pryderu am effaith 

bosibl y newidiadau hyn gyda'i gilydd ar y sector gwirfoddol yn arbennig.  

 

Er bod llawer o sefydliadau gwirfoddol yn cyflogi staff proffesiynol, mae'r 

sector gwirfoddol yn dibynnu'n bennaf ar nifer fawr o bobl frwdfrydig sy'n 

gweithio fel gwirfoddolwyr di-dâl.  Mae'r ffactorau sy'n ysgogi gwirfoddolwyr 

yn niferus, ond rydym yn amau nad yr awydd i helpu i weithredu 

blaenoriaethau Llywodraeth Cymru sy'n eu hysgogi yn bennaf.   

 

Mae’n bwysig bod y sector gwirfoddol yn cael ei annog i weithio mewn 

diwylliant meithringar a chefnogol sy’n cydnabod partneriaeth wirioneddol a 

chydamcanion, yn hytrach na bod y sector yn cael ei weld yn ddim ond un 

arall o asiantaethau cyflenwi’r Llywodraeth.  Mae annibyniaeth y sector 

gwirfoddol yr un mor bwysig ac mae angen bod yn ofalus i sicrhau na chaiff 

ei pheryglu gan yr awydd i ddefnyddio'r sector i helpu i weithredu 

blaenoriaethau'r Llywodraeth. 

 

Mae'r rhan fwyaf o wirfoddolwyr yn gweithio ar lefel leol iawn. Yn wir, mae 

materion lleol yn aml ymysg y ffactorau pennaf sy’n ysgogi gwirfoddolwyr. 

Wrth symud tuag at gyllido a mecanweithiau ymgysylltu 'rhanbarthol', mae 

Tudalen y pecyn 63



4 

 

risg y caiff gwirfoddolwyr lleol eu gwahanu oddi wrth y strwythurau sydd i 

fod i helpu i adlewyrchu eu barn a’u blaenoriaethau.  Mae perygl y collir y 

cysylltiad rhwng blaenoriaethau gwirfoddolwyr ar lawr gwlad a'r 

blaenoriaethau y cytunwyd arnynt mewn strwythurau rhanbarthol a 

chenedlaethol.   

 

O'r herwydd, nid ydym yn argyhoeddedig bod gweledigaeth y Llywodraeth ar 

gyfer y bartneriaeth strategol â'r sector gwirfoddol mor glir ag y dylai fod. 

 

Argymhelliad 1: 

 

Rydym am i chi esbonio ymhellach weledigaeth y Llywodraeth ar gyfer 

partneriaeth strategol â'r Trydydd Sector ac, yn benodol, sut y byddwch yn 

dal y ddysgl yn wastad rhwng yr elfennau croes o gydnabod gwerth gwaith 

gwirfoddol a sicrhau, ar un pryd, fod y sector yn parhau’n annibynnol ar 

Lywodraeth yn lle troi’n gangen arall ohoni.   

 

Y Sector Preifat: 

 

Roedd y Pwyllgor yn falch o glywed eich cefnogaeth i barhad Cyngor 

Adnewyddu'r Economi a'i aelodaeth bresennol.  Er i'r Cyngor gael ei ystyried 

yn ddefnyddiol, mae'n amlwg i ni fod y sector preifat yng Nghymru yn 

gwerthfawrogi mynediad uniongyrchol rheolaidd at Weinidogion Cymru yn 

fawr.  Rydym yn gobeithio y bydd hynny'n parhau. 

 

Rydym hefyd wedi trafod â chi rôl y gwahanol Fyrddau Ymgynghorol a'r 

Grwpiau Gorchwyl a Gorffen a sefydlwyd gan wahanol Weinidogion.  

Gwnaethoch amlinellu rôl a graddfa'r rhain yn y cyfarfod, yn enwedig y 

gwahaniaeth rhwng y grwpiau hynny sy'n cynghori Gweinidogion a'r rhai 

sydd â thasgau penodol i'w cyflawni.  Mae'r Pwyllgor yn derbyn mai 

cyfrifoldeb y Gweinidogion yw gweithredu polisi ac ar eu gwaith hwy y dylid 

craffu.    

Tudalen y pecyn 64



5 

 

 

Cytunasoch yn y cyfarfod i roi nodyn i ni ar amserlen adrodd rhai o'r grwpiau 

gorchwyl a gorffen, ac mae eich llythyr dyddiedig 18 Rhagfyr yn dweud yr un 

peth. O ystyried nifer y Grwpiau a amlinellwyd gennych (ac eraill y cyfeiriodd 

yr Aelodau atynt) mae'r Pwyllgor yn credu y byddai'n fan cychwyn defnyddiol 

pe gallech roi i ni ddatganiad yn nodi pryd y disgwylir i bob grŵp adrodd i'r 

Gweinidogion.   

 

Mae nifer y grwpiau hyn, fodd bynnag, yn codi cwestiynau am sut y mae 

Llywodraeth Cymru at ei gilydd yn cynnal troslolwg strategol o ran eu gwaith. 

Mae hefyd yn anodd i'r Cynulliad wybod beth a fyddai’r ffordd orau o graffu 

ar y polisïau y mae’r grwpiau hyn yn rhoi cyngor yn eu cylch gan nad oes 

trosolwg ar gael o'u gwaith.  Am y rheswm hwn, mae'r Pwyllgor o'r farn y 

byddai'n ddefnyddiol pe bai datganiad blynyddol yn cael ei roi i'r Cynulliad 

yn nodi'r ffeithiau allweddol am sawl grŵp sydd wedi cael ei sefydlu, gyda 

braslun o bwrpas y grwpiau a phryd y disgwylir iddynt adrodd. 

 

Argymhelliad 2: 

 

Byddai'n dda gennym pe baech yn cytuno i osod gerbron y Cynulliad 

ddatganiad blynyddol am nifer, rôl, trefniadau adrodd ac aelodaeth holl 

Fyrddau Cynghori a Grwpiau Gorchwyl a Gorffen Llywodraeth Cymru sydd o 

dan arweiniad y sector preifat.  Byddai hefyd yn dda gennym pe bai'r 

adroddiad yn amlinellu sut y mae pob un o'r byrddau neu grwpiau wedi 

dylanwadu'n uniongyrchol ar weithgareddau adrannau Llywodraeth Cymru yn 

y flwyddyn flaenorol ac yn nodi unrhyw newidiadau arfaethedig o ran dull ar 

gyfer y flwyddyn ganlynol. 

 

Gwnaethom drafod â chi rôl Asesiadau Effaith Rheoleiddiol (yr 'Asesiadau') i 

sicrhau bod effaith y newidiadau polisi a deddfwriaeth ar y sector preifat yn 

cael ei hasesu'n briodol.  Trafodasom hefyd a yw'r Asesiadau yn rhoi digon o 

sylw i effaith gronnus newidiadau polisi a deddfwriaeth.  Rydym yn derbyn 

Tudalen y pecyn 65



6 

 

bod yr Asesiadau yn cael eu cynnal yn unol â'r rheolau a bennwyd gan 

Drysorlys Ei Mawrhydi ac y byddai'n rhaid wrth resymau da pe bai gan Gymru 

yn unig ddull gwahanol o ran yr Asesiadau.  Fodd bynnag, rydym yn dal yn 

bryderus nad yw'n ymddangos bod mecanwaith clir ar gyfer asesu effeithiau 

cronnol polisi a deddfwriaeth ar y sector preifat.  

 

Argymhelliad 3: 

 

Byddai'n dda gennym pe baech yn rhoi datganiad inni yn nodi sut, o dan 

broses gyfredol yr Asesiadau, y mae Llywodraeth Cymru yn asesu effaith 

gronnus y newidiadau polisi a deddfwriaeth Gymreig newydd ar y sector 

preifat. 

 

Yn olaf, rydym yn ddiolchgar am y wybodaeth yn eich llythyr dyddiedig 18 

Rhagfyr am werthuso Uned Partneriaid Cymdeithasol Cymru y dywedwch y 

caiff ei werthuso'n annibynnol yn nhrydedd flwyddyn ei chontract.  Byddai'n 

ddefnyddiol pe gallech nodi pryd y bydd hynny'n debygol o ddigwydd a 

nodi'r prif feini prawf ar gyfer gwerthuso.  Byddai hefyd yn dda gennym gael 

copi o'r gwerthusiad ar ôl iddo gael ei gwblhau. 

 

Edrychwn ymlaen at eich atebion i'r pwyntiau a godwyd yn y llythyr hwn. 

Bydd ein llythyr a'ch ateb yn cael eu cyhoeddi ar ein gwefan. 

 

Prosiectau Seilwaith Mawr yng Ngogledd Cymru 

 

Rydym hefyd wedi trafod eich llythyr dyddiedig 8 Hydref yn ymateb i 

argymhellion y Pwyllgor yn sgîl ein cyfarfod yn Wrecsam yn gynharach eleni 

lle y trafodasom brosiectau seilwaith mawr yng Ngogledd Cymru. 

 

Mae'r Pwyllgor wedi trafod eich ymateb a byddem yn ddiolchgar am sylwadau 

pellach gennych mewn perthynas â'r pwyntiau canlynol: 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 66



7 

 

Argymhelliad 1 

 

Yn fy llythyr dyddiedig 20 Awst, gofynnwyd am esboniad o sut y mae'r 

gwahanol gynlluniau a rhaglenni yn cyd-fynd â'i gilydd, yn enwedig rôl 

Cynllun Gofodol Cymru, a gafodd ei ddiweddaru ddiwethaf bum mlynedd yn 

ôl, cyn y Rhaglen Lywodraethu a chyflwyno mentrau fel Cynlluniau'r 

Sectorau/Ardaloedd Menter. Soniais hefyd am y 'Llif Cyflawni' y cyfeiriasoch 

ato yn eich tystiolaeth. 

 

Un enghraifft o hyn yw'r Cynllun Trafnidiaeth Cenedlaethol.  Cafodd ei ail-

flaenoriaethu yn 2011 ac mae'n seiliedig ar Strategaeth Drafnidiaeth Cymru a 

baratowyd gan y llywodraeth glymblaid flaenorol, a wnaeth gysylltiadau 

trafnidiaeth rhwng y gogledd a’r de yn fwy o flaenoriaeth nag y mae 

Llywodraeth Cymru ar hyn o bryd. 

 

Nid oes esboniad o'r 'Llif Cyflawni' ac nid yw wedi'i gynnwys yn y diagram yn 

Atodiad 1 i'ch llythyr.   

 

Argymhelliad 2 

 

Ymddengys fod eich ymateb yn camddeall y pwynt a wnaed yn llythyr y 

Pwyllgor. Roedd y drafodaeth yn y cyfarfod y cyfeirir ati yn y llythyr am y 

sector preifat yn cynnwys cymunedau lleol mewn penderfyniadau a sicrhau 

buddion ariannol a buddion eraill i'r cymunedau hyn, yn enwedig y rhai yr 

effeithir arnynt gan brosiectau seilwaith ynni. Roedd y Pwyllgor yn gofyn am 

yr hyn a alwyd gennych yn 'feddwl yn ehangach' ar y mater hwn a rôl 

Llywodraeth Cymru yn hyn o beth. Mae'r ymateb yn canolbwyntio yn bennaf 

ar drefniadau caffael Llywodraeth Cymru yn hytrach nag ar y safbwynt 

ehangach hwn - nid oes cyfeiriad o gwbl at y sector ynni na'r Datganiad am 

Fudd i'r Gymuned a fabwysiadwyd yn ddiweddar. 

 

Argymhelliad 6 

Tudalen y pecyn 67



8 

 

 

Nid yw eich ymateb yn glir ynghylch yr amserlen ar gyfer rhoi unrhyw 

welliannau ar waith. 

 

Argymhelliad 7 

 

Gofynnodd y Pwyllgor am nodyn ar gynlluniau Llywodraeth Cymru i wella 

gwelliannau ffordd a rheilffordd eraill yn y gogledd - yn benodol, roedd gan 

y Pwyllgor ddiddordeb yn y cysylltiadau rhwng Aberystwyth a'r cylch a 

gogledd Cymru. Er bod y datganiadau yr ydych yn sôn amdanynt yn cyfeirio 

at y gogledd, gofynnodd y Pwyllgor am y wybodaeth ddiweddaraf am 

gynlluniau penodol yng ngogledd Cymru, a byddai o gymorth pe gallech roi 

ymateb mwy manwl ac eglur. 

 

Byddwn yn ddiolchgar o gael eich ymateb ar y pwyntiau uchod maes o law. 

 

Yn gywir 

 

 

David Melding AC 

Cadeirydd y Pwyllgor Craffu ar Waith y Prif Weinidog 

Tudalen y pecyn 68


	Agenda
	2 Craffu ar Waith y Gweinidog - Strategaeth 2010 Llywodraeth Cymru ar y Newid yn yr Hinsawdd.
	Briff Ymchwil

	3 Papurau i'w nodi
	CSFM(4)01-14 (ptn1 annexe) Wales Social Partners Unit Evaluation (Saesneg yn Unig)
	Gohebiaeth-Cadeirydd i'r Prif Weinidog Mawrdd 2014


